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12/31/2018 8/7/2009 9/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/7/2009 9/8/2010 uncollectable $96.88 

12/31/2018 8/7/2009 9/8/2010 uncollectable $34.09 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 10/2/2009 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $143.89 

12/31/2018 9/1012009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $44.18 

12/31/2018 9110/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $55.09 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $60.39 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $34.98 

12131/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $29.38 

12/31/2018 9/10/2009 2/6/2012 uncollectable $10.69 

12/29/2018 10/9/2009 9/9/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 1019/2009 9/9/2013 uncollectable $35.54 

12/29/2018 10/9/2009 9/9/2013 uncollectable $46.53 

12/29/2018 10/9/2009 9/9/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 11/13/2009 4/2/2010 uncollectable $28.35 

12/31/2018 12/10/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $63.09 

12131/2018 12/10/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 12/1012009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 12/10/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12110/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 12110/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $89.45 

12/31/2018 12/10/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 12/10/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 12110/2009 7/26/2011 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 9/8/2010 uncollectable $76.26 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 9/8/2010 uncollectable $96.88 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 9/8/2010 uncollectable $44.92 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 9/8/2010 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/201 a 1/12/2010 9/8/2010 uncollectable $104.29 

12/31/201a 1/12/2010 9/8/2010 uncollectable $59.76 

12/31/201a 1/12/2010 918/2010 uncollectable $156.24 

12/31/201 a 1/12/2010 9/8/2010 uncollectable $29.61 

12/30/2018 1/12/2010 1/23/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 1/12/2010 1/23/2012 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 1/12/2010 1123/2012 uncollectable $52.aO 

12/30/2018 1/12/2010 1/23/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 1/12/2010 1/23/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 1/12/2010 1/23/2012 uncollectable $9.31 

12/30/2018 1/12/2010 1/23/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/201a 1/12/2010 1/23/2012 uncollectable $30.09 

12/30/201 a 1/12/2010 1/23/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 11/6/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $0.32 

12/3112018 1/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 1/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $156.24 

12/29/2018 1/12/2010 2/4/2015 uncollectable $37.62 
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P~yments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $15.16 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $38.11 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 5/3/2011 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $0.32 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 3/11/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 4/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 4/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $0.32 

12/31/2018 4/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 4/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/2018 4/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 4/12/2010 11/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/29/2018 5/10/2010 6/9/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 71712010 1/6/2012 uncollectable $52.80 

12/31/2018 7/712010 1/6/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 7/7/2010 1/6/2012 uncollectable $52.80 

12/31/2018 7/7/2010 1/6/2012 uncollectable $60.39 

12/31/2018 7/7/2010 1/6/2012 uncollectable $15.39 

12/30/2018 7/12/2010 1/19/2011 uncollectable $111.72 

12/30/2018 7/12/2010 1/19/2011 uncollectable $37.50 

12/30/2018 7/12/2010 1/19/2011 uncollectable $37.50 

12/30/2018 7/1212010 1/19/2011 uncollectable $37.50 

12/30/2018 7/12/2010 1/19/2011 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 7/12/2010 1/19/2011 uncollectable $16.42 

12/30/2018 7/12/2010 1/19/2011 uncollectable $22.66 

12131/2018 10/12/2010 2/6/2012 uncollectable $166.66 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 2/6/2012 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 2/6/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 10112/2010 2/6/2012 uncollectable $128.71 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 2/6/2012 uncollectable $143.89 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 2/6/2012 uncollectable $238.16 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 2/6/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 10/12/2010 5/26/2016 uncollectable $45.21 

12/29/2018 10/12/2010 5/26/2016 uncollectable $0.21 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 6/13/2016 uncollectable $15.06 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 6/13/2016 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 6/13/2016 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 10/12/2010 6/13/2016 uncollectable $74.03 

12/31/2018 11/10/2010 2/1/2011 uncollectable $349.20 

12/31/2018 11/10/2010 2/1/2011 uncollectable $0.32 

12/31/2018 11/10/2010 10/20/2011 uncollectable $12.79 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 12/21/2010 uncollectable $54.00 

12/31/2018 12/10/2010 6/8/2011 uncollectable $30.09 
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PaYments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12131/2018 12/10/2010 6/8/2011 uncollectable $0 .32 

12131/2018 12/10/2010 6/8/2011 uncollectable $104.29 

12/3112018 12/10/2010 6/812011 uncollectable $67.19 

12131/2018 12/10/2010 6/8/2011 uncollectable $82.03 

12131/2018 12/10/2010 6/8/2011 uncol lectable $44.92 

12/31/2018 1/7/2011 7127/2011 uncollectable $185.92 

12/31/2018 1/7/2011 7/27/2011 uncollectable $67.19 

12131/2018 1/7/2011 7/27/2011 uncollectable $44.92 

12/31/2018 1/7/2011 7/27/2011 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/2018 1/7/2011 7/27/2011 uncollectable $104.29 

12/31/2018 1/7/2011 7/27/2011 uncollectable $350.85 

12/31/2018 1/7/2011 2/6/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 1/7/2011 2/6/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 1/7/2011 2/6/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 1/11/2011 5/23/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 1/11/2011 5/23/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 1/11/2011 5/23/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 1/11/2011 5/23/2012 uncollectable $75.69 

12/31/2018 1/11/2011 5/23/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 1/11/2011 6/13/2011 uncollectable $133.98 

12/31/2018 1/11/2011 6/13/2011 uncollectable $82.03 

12/31/2018 1/11/2011 6/13/2011 uncollectable $29.61 

12131/2018 2/10/2011 11/512014 uncollectable $10.03 

12/31/2018 2/10/2011 11/5/2014 uncollectable $63.03 

12/31/2018 2/10/2011 11/5/2014 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 2/10/2011 11/5/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 2110/2011 11/5/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 2/10/2011 11/5/2014 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 5/10/2011 8/30/2011 uncollectable $4.97 

12/31/2018 5/10/2011 8/30/2011 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $0.32 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 5/11/2011 2/14/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 12/27/2011 uncollectable $16.34 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 12/27/2011 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 12/27/2011 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 12/27/2011 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 12/27/2011 uncollectable $69.30 

12/3112018 6/13/2011 9/10/2013 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 9/10/2013 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 7/22/2015 uncollectable $60.39 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 7/22/2015 uncollectable $60.39 

12131/2018 6/13/2011 7/22/2015 uncollectable $52.80 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 7/22/2015 uncollectable $85.80 

12/31/2018 6/13/2011 7/22/2015 uncollectable $46.53 

12129/2018 6/13/2011 9/2/2011 uncollectable $37.42 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 415/2012 uncollectable $22.65 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 4/5/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 9/8/2011 11/14/2011 uncollectable $30.24 
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P~yr:nents and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 
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1213112018 91812011 1111412011 uncollectable $75.57 

1212912018 91912011 1013012013 uncollectable $98.34 

1212912018 919/2011 10/30/2013 uncollectable $121.12 

12/2912018 919/2011 10/30/2013 uncollectable $75.57 

12/29/2018 919/2011 10/30/2013 uncollectable $5.19 

12/2912018 9/9/2011 10130/2013 uncollectable $121.12 

12/2912018 9/9/2011 10/30/2013 uncollectable $121.12 

12129/2018 1017/2011 1/4/2012 uncollectable $7.80 

12/29/2018 10/7/2011 1/412012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 10/7/2011 1/4/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12131/2018 10/7/2011 3/20/2013 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 10/7/2011 312012013 uncollectable $45.21 

12/3112018 10nt2011 312012013 uncollectable $30.03 

1213112018 10/712011 312012013 uncollectable $2.98 

1213112018 10/7/2011 3/20/2013 uncollectable $11.38 

12131/2018 101712011 312012013 uncollectable $52.80 

12/31/2018 10n/2011 3/20/2013 uncollectable $90.75 

12131/2018 101712011 3120/2013 uncollectable $84.30 

1213112018 10nt2011 3120/2013 uncollectable $54.12 

12131/2018 10/11/2011 12/26/2013 uncollectable $67.98 

12131/2018 10/1112011 1212612013 uncollectable $98.34 

12/31/2018 12/912011 1112712012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 121912011 1112712012 uncollectable $30.03 

12131/2018 12/912011 11/27/2012 uncollectable $54.12 

12131/2018 12/912011 11/27/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12131/2018 12/912011 11/27/2012 uncollectable $46.53 

12131/2018 12/9/2011 11/27/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/9/2011 11/27/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 12/912011 11/27/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

1213112018 12/912011 11/27/2012 uncollectable $10.39 

1213112018 12/9/2011 1112712012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/9/2011 12/3/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/9/2011 12/3/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/9/2011 12/3/2014 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 12/9/2011 12/3/2014 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 12/9/2011 12/3/2014 uncollectable $11.26 

12/30/2018 2/6/2012 2/15/2012 uncollectable $60.39 

12/29/2018 217/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 2/712012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $25.09 

12/29/2018 2/7/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $19.06 

12/31/2018 3/7/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 3/7/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 3/712012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 3/7/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $75.57 

12/31/2018 3/7/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12131/2018 3/8/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 3/8/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 3/8/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 3/8/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12131/2018 3/8/2012 7/5/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 3/8/2012 11/13/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 3/8/2012 11113/201·2 uncollectable $54.12 

12/3112018 318/2012 11/13/2012 uncollectable $75.57 

12/31/2018 3/8/2012 11/13/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12131/2018 3/8/2012 11/13/2012 uncollectable $75.57 



• . . - •t • . 

Payments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12/31/2018 3/8/2012 11/13/2012 uncollectable $60.39 

12/31/2018 4/5/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 4/5/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 4/5/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $105.94 

12/31/2018 4/5/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 4/5/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 1/4/2013 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 1/4/2013 uncollectable $61 .71 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 1/4/2013 uncollectable $52.80 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 1/4/2013 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 1/4/2013 uncollectable $52.80 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 1/4/2013 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $76.89 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 4/9/2012 8/13/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2016 5/8/2012 9/13/2012 uncollectable $75.57 

12/31/2018 5/8/2012 9/13/2012 uncollectable $75.57 

12/31/2018 5/8/2012 9/13/2012 uncollectable $83.16 

12/31/2018 5/8/2012 9/13/2012 uncollectable $98.34 

12/31/2018 5/8/2012 9/13/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 9/19/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2016 6/6/2012 9/19/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 9/19/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 1/31/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 1/31/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 1/31/2013 uncollectable $30.68 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 1/31/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 10/8/2013 uncollectable $154.12 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 10/8/2013 uncollectable $74.79 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 10/8/2013 uncollectable $98.34 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 10/8/2013 uncollectable $105.94 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 10/8/2013 uncollectable $137.62 

12/31/2018 9/10/2012 5/9/2014 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 9/10/2012 5/9/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 9/10/2012 5/9/2014 uncollectable $113.06 

12/31/2018 9/10/2012 5/9/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 9/10/2012 5/9/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 9/10/2012 11/4/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 9/10/2012 11/4/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 10/8/2012 2/6/2013 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 10/8/2012 2/6/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 10/8/2012 2/6/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 10/8/2012 2/6/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 10/8/2012 2/6/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 11/7/2012 11/27/2012 uncollectable $60.39 

12/31/2018 3/6/2013 1/9/2014 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 3/6/2013 1/9/2014 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 3/6/2013 1/9/2014 uncollectable $57.20 

12/31/2018 3/6/2013 1/9/2014 uncollectable $464.00 

12/31/2018 3/6/2013 1/9/2014 uncollectable $40.84 

12/31/2018 4/4/2013 9/4/2014 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 4/4/2013 9/4/2014 uncollectable $90.75 

12/31/2018 4/4/2013 9/4/2014 uncollectable $75.57 
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Payments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12/31/2018 4/4/2013 9/4/2014 uncollectable $60.39 
12/31/2018 4/4/2013 9/4/2014 uncollectable $93.39 
12/30/2018 9/10/2013 3/2/2016 uncollectable $477.90 
12/30/2018 9/10/2013 3/2/2016 uncollectable $37.83 

12/30/2018 10/7/2013 4/8/2014 uncollectable $5.99 
12/30/2018 10/7/2013 4/8/2014 uncollectable $52.80 
12/30/2018 10/7/2013 4/8/2014 uncollectable $37.62 
12/30/2018 10/7/2013 4/8/2014 uncollectable $46.53 

12/30/2018 10/7/2013 4/8/2014 uncollectable $45.21 

12/29/2018 1/8/2014 5/12/2014 uncollectable $30.03 
12/29/2018 1/B/2014 5/12/2014 uncollectable $52.80 
12/29/2018 1/8/2014 5/12/2014 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 1/8/2014 5/12/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 1/8/2014 5/12/2014 uncollectable $17.62 

12/31/2018 2/10/2014 9/4/2014 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 2/10/2014 9/4/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 2/10/2014 9/4/2014 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 2/10/2014 9/4/2014 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 2/10/2014 9/4/2014 uncollectable $21.63 

12/29/2018 4/8/2014 3/14/2016 uncollectable $30.03 
12/29/2018 7/8/2014 5/12/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 7/8/2014 5/12/2015 uncollectable $22.65 

12/31/2018 8/11/2014 3/11/2015 uncollectable $70.10 

12/31/2018 8/11/2014 3/11/2015 uncollectable $90.75 

12/31/2018 8/11/2014 3/11/2015 uncollectable $327.39 

12/31/2018 8/11/2014 3/11/2015 uncollectable $76.10 

12/31/2018 8/11/2014 3/11/2015 uncollectable $98.34 

12/29/2018 9/8/2014 2/2/2015 uncollectable $60.39 

12/29/2018 11/6/2014 1/7/2016 uncollectable $67.98 

12/29/2018 11/6/2014 1/7/2016 uncollectable $83.16 

12/29/2018 11/6/2014 1/7/2016 uncollectable $60.39 

12/29/2018 11/6/2014 1/7/2016 uncollectable $60.39 

12/29/2018 11/6/2014 1/7/2016 uncollectable $43.79 

12/29/2018 11/6/2014 1/7/2016 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 1/9/2015 2/11/2016 uncollectable $30.24 

12/31/2018 1/9/2015 2/11/2016 uncollectable $74.03 

12/31/2018 1/9/2015 2/11/2016 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 3/10/2015 8/10/2015 uncollectable $45.21 

12/29/2018 3/10/2015 8/10/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 3/10/2015 8/10/2015 uncollectable $90.53 

12/29/2018 8/10/2015 1/29/2016 uncollectable $81 .62 

12/29/2018 8/10/2015 1/29/2016 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 8/10/2015 1/29/2016 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 8/10/2015 1/29/2016 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 8/10/2015 1/29/2016 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 8/10/2015 1/29/2016 uncollectable $89.21 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $20.60 

:.: 

'. 



' 
. 

t· . • !:-·''"'' . .. ~ . 
~~y"ments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

' 
·.; ·1. 

12131/2018 12110/2006 218/2010 uncollectable $150.48 

12131/2018 1211012006 2/812010 uncollectable $30.09 

12131/2018 12110/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $44.92 

1213112018 12110/2006 21812010 uncollectable $37.50 

1213112018 12110/2006 21812010 uncollectable $14.76 

12/31/2018 12/1012006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $22 .66 

12/31/2018 12110/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

1213112018 1211012006 21812010 . uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12110/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $1 .63 

12131/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12131/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $30.09 

1213112018 1211012006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $44.92 

12/3112018 12110/2006 8/1912016 uncollectable $69.30 

12/31/2018 12/1012006 8/1912016 uncollectable $52.80 

12/31/2018 12/1012006 8/19/2016 uncollectable $75.57 

12131/2018 12/1012006 8/19/2016 uncollectable $67.98 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 811912016 uncollectable $67.98 

12131/2018 12110/2006 8/19/2016 uncollectable $41.48 

12131/2018 12/10/2006 8/1912016 uncollectable $52.80 

12131/2018 12/10/2006 9/1512008 uncollectable $22.66 

12131/2018 12/1012006 9/15/2008 uncollectable $60.85 

12/31/2018 12110/2006 9/1512008 uncollectable $22.66 

12131/2018 12/10/2006 9/15/2008 uncollectable $59.76 

12131/2018 12110/2006 9/15/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12131/2018 12/10/2006 9/15/2008 uncollectable $37.50 

12/3112018 12/10/2006 911512008 uncollectable $25.70 

12/3112018 12110/2006 9/1512008 uncollectable $22.66 

1213112018 1211012006 9/15/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12131/2018 12/10/2006 9/15/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/1012006 9/1512008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 9/15/2006 uncollectable $22.66 

12131/2018 12110/2006 9/1512008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2016 12110/2006 8/4/2009 uncollectable $43.53 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 8/4/2009 uncollectable $89.45 

12/31/2018 12110/2006 814/2009 uncollectable $46.81 

12/31/2018 12110/2006 814/2009 uncollectable $51.88 

12131/2018 12110/2006 814/2009 uncollectable $89.45 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 814/2009 uncollectable $67.19 

12/31/2018 1211012006 81412009 uncollectable $126.56 

12131/2018 12110/2006 81412009 uncollectable $82.03 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 81412009 uncollectable $32.45 

12/3112016 12/1012006 8/4/2009 uncollectable $74.61 

12/31/2018 12110/2006 8/4/2009 uncollectable $74.61 

12130/2018 12110/2006 3121/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/1012006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/3012018 12110/2006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/1012006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

1213012016 12/10/2006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12110/2006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12130/2018 1211012006 3121/2008 uncollectable $28.51 

12/30/2018 12110/2006 3121/2008 uncollectable $22 .66 

12/30/2018 12110/2006 3/2112008 uncollectable $641 .23 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $38.92 
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',Payments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $38.92 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 3/21/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $30.09 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $21.93 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $30.09 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $27.35 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $39.16 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/8/2010 uncollectable $10.49 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 6/5/2007 uncollectable $503.34 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 6/5/2007 uncollectable $56.20 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 6/5/2007 uncollectable $21 .64 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 6/5/2007 uncollectable $28.56 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 6/5/2007 uncollectable $80.39 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 6/5/2007 uncollectable $0.01 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 6/5/2007 uncollectable $59.64 

12/29/2018 6/6/2007 6/9/2015 uncollectable $143.02 

12/29/2018 6/6/2007 6/9/2015 uncollectable $5.84 

12/29/2018 6/6/2007 6/9/2015 uncollectable $121 .12 

12/29/2018 6/6/2007 6/9/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 6/6/2007 6/9/2015 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 6/6/2007 6/9/2015 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $101 .98 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $115.03 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $52.35 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $80.29 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 12/21/2009 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 9/16/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 9/16/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 9/16/2008 uncollectable $96.88 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 9/16/2008 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 9/16/2008 uncollectable $208.19 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 9/16/2008 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 8/14/2007 9/16/2008 uncollectable $82.03 

12/3112018 811412007 9116/2008 uncollectable $67.19 

12/3112018 8/14/2007 9116/2008 uncollectable $30.09 

12/3112018 8/14/2007 911612008 uncollectable $30.09 

12/3112018 8/14/2007 9/1612008 uncollectable $52.27 

1212812018 10110/2007 9115/2008 uncollectable $82.03 

12/2812018 10/1012007 9115/2008 uncollectable $3.34 

12/28/2018 10110/2007 9/15/2008 uncollectable $126.56 

12/28/2018 10/10/2007 9/15/2008 uncollectable $119.13 

12/2812018 10/10/2007 9/15/2008 uncollectable $111.72 

12/28/2018 10/1012007 911512008 uncollectable $119.13 

12/2812018 10/10/2007 9/15/2008 uncollectable $141 .39 

12/28/2018 10/10/2007 9115/2008 uncollectable $126.56 

1212812018 1011012007 911512008 uncollectable $104.29 

12131/2018 5113/2008 41612009 uncollectable $52.35 
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Payments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $22.66 
12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $189.86 

12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $59.76 

12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $44.92 

12/31/2018 5/13/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $371.46 

12/29/2018 9/10/2008 2/2/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12/29/2018 9/10/2008 2/2/2010 uncollectable $44.92 

12/29/2018 9/10/2008 2/2/2010 uncollectable $67.72 

12/29/2018 9/10/2008 2/2/2010 uncollectable $59.76 

12/29/2018 9/10/2008 2/2/2010 uncollectable $52.35 

12/29/2018 9/10/2008 2/2/2010 uncollectable $29.61 

12/29/2018 9/10/2008 2/2/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12/29/2018 9/10/2008 2/2/2010 uncollectable $30.09 

12/29/2018 2/10/2009 9/10/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/29/2018 2/10/2009 9/10/2009 uncollectable $30.09 

12/29/2018 2/10/2009 9/10/2009 uncollectable $37.50 

12/29/2018 2/10/2009 9/10/2009 uncollectable $0.10 

12/29/2018 2/10/2009 9/28/2015 uncollectable $159.07 

12/29/2018 2/10/2009 9/28/2015 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 3/26/2010 uncollectable $200.77 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 3/26/2010 uncollectable $163.66 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 3/26/2010 uncollectable $0.10 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 3/26/2010 uncollectable $216.15 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 3/26/2010 uncollectable $223.04 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 3/26/2010 uncollectable $304.59 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 3/26/2010 uncollectable $460.50 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 3/26/2010 uncollectable $115.61 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $96.88 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $30.17 

12130/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $189.24 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $67.19 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $67.19 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $61 .08 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $74.61 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $111.72 

12/30/2018 9/10/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $82.03 

12/30/2018 5/10/2010 11/9/2010 uncollectable $193.35 

12/30/2018 5/10/2010 11/9/2010 uncollectable $208.19 

12/30/2018 5/10/2010 11/9/2010 uncollectable $155.77 

12/30/2018 5/10/2010 11/9/2010 uncollectable $193.35 

12/30/2018 5/10/2010 11/9/2010 uncollectable $73.04 

12/30/2018 5/10/2010 11/9/2010 uncollectable $208.19 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $1 .53 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $30.09 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $59.76 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $22.66 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $44.92 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $52.35 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $52.35 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $111.72 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/6/2011 uncollectable $37.62 
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P~y.ments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

.. . .. 
12/31/2018 2/5/2013 4/9/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 2/5/2013 4/9/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 3/6/2013 4/9/2013 uncollectable $75.57 

12/30/2018 3/6/2013 4/9/2013 uncol\ectable $1 '138.32 
12/30/2018 7/8/2013 2/5/2014 uncollectable $675.27 

12/30/2018 7/8/2013 2/5/2014 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 7/8/2013 2/5/2014 uncollectable $67.98 

12/29/2018 5/8/2014 9/4/2014 uncol\ectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 5/8/2014 9/4/2014 uncollectable $54.12 

12/29/2018 5/8/2014 9/4/2014 uncollectable $46.53 

12/29/2018 5/8/2014 9/4/2014 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 5/8/2014 9/4/2014 uncol\ectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 6/10/2016 8/8/2016 uncol\ectable $37.62 

12/30/2018 6/10/2016 8/8/2016 uncol\ectable $111 .98 

12/30/2018 6/10/2016 8/8/2016 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 12110/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $7.86 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncol\ectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncol\ectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $2.48 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/1012006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12130/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable . $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $0.95 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 6/23/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 12/21/2011 uncollectable $9.10 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 12/21/2011 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 12/21/2011 uncollectable $45.21 

12130/2018 12/10/2006 12/21/2011 uncollectable $37.62 

12130/2018 12/10/2006 12/21/2011 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 12/21/2011 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $82.03 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 B/28/2012 uncollectable $22.03 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $119.13 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 B/28/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/30/201 B 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncol\ectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $89.45 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $119.13 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $156.24 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $74.61 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $90.73 
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Pay,ments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $97.24 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $119.13 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $9.01 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 8/28/2012 uncollectable $82.03 
12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $927.70 
12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $90.25 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $89.45 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $37.50 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $126.56 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $24.23 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $104.29 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $211.05 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $82.03 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $82.03 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $52.35 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $111 .72 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $97.62 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $96.88 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $188.80 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $67.19 

12/30/2018 12/10/2006 2/19/2009 uncollectable $104.29 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $32.01 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $37.50 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $37.50 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $59.76 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $44.92 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $67.19 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $44.92 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $44.92 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $5.46 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $37.50 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $35.46 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $8.61 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $115.03 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $30.09 

12/29/2018 12/10/2006 9/17/2008 uncollectable $96.88 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $59.76 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $52.26 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $89.45 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $44.92 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $59.76 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $23.42 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $90.98 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $59.76 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $59.76 

12/31/2018 1/18/2007 10/8/2008 uncollectable $68.17 

12/29/2018 12/5/2007 2/21/2008 uncollectable $27.03 

12/29/2018 12/5/2007 2/21/2008 uncollectable $59.70 

12/29/2018 2/7/2008 10/11/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 2/7/2008 10/11/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 2/7/2008 10/11/2012 uncollectable $0.25 

12/29/2018 217/2008 10/11/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

.. 
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Payments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12/29/2018 2!7/2008 10/11/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $543.97 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $230.45 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $52.35 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $59.76 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $52.35 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $44.92 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $67.19 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $52.35 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $44.85 

12/30/2018 5/9/2008 4/6/2009 uncollectable $37.50 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4/7/2009 uncollectable $74.61 

12/30/2018 61912008 4/7/2009 uncollectable $252.24 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4/7/2009 uncollectable $67.19 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4/7/2009 uncollectable $67.19 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4/7/2009 uncollectable $74.61 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4/7/2009 uncollectable $67.19 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4/7/2009 uncollectable $82.03 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 417/2009 uncollectable $148.82 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4n/2009 uncollectable $193.35 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4/7/2009 uncollectable $185.92 

12/30/2018 6/9/2008 4n/2009 uncollectable $119.13 

12/30/2018 7/9/2008 Sn/2011 uncollectable $44.92 

12/30/2018 7/9/2008 6/7/2011 uncollectable $10.82 

12/30/2018 1/9/2009 4/9/2014 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 1/9/2009 4/9/2014 uncollectable $37.62 

12/30/2018 1/9/2009 4/9/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 1/9/2009 4/9/2014 uncollectable $60.39 

12/30/2018 1/9/2009 8/4/2009 uncollectable $5.64 

12/30/2018 1/9/2009 8/4/2009 uncollectable $358.37 

12/30/2018 1/9/2009 8/4/2009 uncollectable $0.66 

12/30/2018 1/9/2009 8/4/2009 uncollectable $0.66 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $52.80 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $67.98 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $52.80 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $90.75 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $221 .12 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $37.62 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $136.30 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $19.54 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 6/1112009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $46.53 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $81.10 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $45.21 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $13.71 

12/30/2018 B/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 6/11/2009 9/24/2013 uncollectable $17.25 

12/30/2018 7/9/2009 11/8/2010 uncollectable $30.00 

12/30/2018 8/10/2009 3/8/2010 uncollectable $20.92 

12/30/2018 8/10/2009 3/8/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/30/2018 8/10/2009 3/8/2010 uncollectable $15.63 
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· .·:. P.ayments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31118 

~' . , 

12/29/2018 9/11/2009 2/11/2015 uncollectable $46.64 

12/29/2018 9/11/2009 2/11/2015 uncollectable $46.53 

12/29/2018 9/11/2009 2/11/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 9/11/2009 2/11/2015 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 9/11/2009 2/11/2015 uncollectable $45.21 

12/29/2018 9/11/2009 2/11/2015 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 9/11/2009 2/11/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 9/11/2009 2/11/2015 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 9/13/2010 6/14/2011 uncollectable $59.76 

12/29/2018 9/13/2010 6/14/2011 uncollectable $89.45 

12/29/2018 9/13/2010 6/14/2011 uncollectable $74.61 

12/29/2018 9/13/2010 6/14/2011 uncollectable $44.92 

12/29/2018 9/13/2010 6/14/2011 uncollectable $52.35 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/28/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/29/2018 12/10/2010 9/28/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/30/2018 12/10/2010 2/25/2011 uncollectable $1,172.94 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $51.88 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $60.39 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $67.98 

12/29/2018 8/9/2011 10/9/2012 uncollectable $46.53 

12/29/2018 12/9/2011 1/9/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/29/2018 12/9/2011 1/9/2012 uncollectable $0.21 

12/30/2018 1/8/2014 7/23/2014 uncollectable $219.80 

12/30/2018 1/8/2014 7/23/2014 uncollectable $272.94 

12/30/2018 1/8/2014 7/23/2014 uncollectable $433.68 

12/30/2018 1/8/2014 7/23/2014 uncollectable $159.07 

12/30/2018 1/8/2014 7/23/2014 uncollectable '$91.49 

12/30/2018 7/9/2014 10/27/2015 uncollectable $60.39 

12/30/2018 7/9/2014 10/27/2015 uncollectable $89.21 

12/30/2018 7/9/2014 10/27/2015 uncollectable $60.39 

12/30/2018 7/9/2014 10/27/2015 uncollectable $113.53 

12/30/2018 7/9/2014 10/27/2015 uncollectable $10.39 

12/30/2018 7/9/2014 10/27/2015 uncollectable $60.39 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 6/13/2011 uncollectable $7.75 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/3/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/3/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/3/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/3/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/3/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/3/2012 uncollectable $121.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/3/2012 uncollectable $68.60 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/3/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/21/2013 uncollectable $319.33 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/21/2013 uncollectable $356.30 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 12/9/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 12/9/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 12/9/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 12/9/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 12/9/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/20/2007 uncollectable $16.31 

1., 



• .. • w .. , 
•'" ' ... (,·. . . ' 

'Payments and adjustments made between 12/01/18 and 12/31/18 

12/31/2018 12/10/2006 2/20/2007 uncollectable $18.18 

12/31/2018 1/9/2008 2/14/2008 uncollectable $96.79 

12/31/2018 7/9/2008 8/19/2008 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 7/9/2008 8/19/2008 uncollectable $215.14 

12/31/2018 6/7/2007 7/1/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 6/7/2007 7/1/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 6/7/2007 7/1/2008 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 6/7/2007 7/1/2008 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2018 6/7/2007 7/1/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 6/7/2007 7/1/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 6/7/2007 7/1/2008 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 2/10/2010 11/18/2010 uncollectable $30.09 

12/31/2016 2/10/2010 11116/2010 uncollectable $37.50 

12/31/2018 2/10/2010 11118/2010 uncollectable $22.66 

12131/2018 2/1012010 11118/2010 uncollectable $7.75 

12131/2018 2/10/2010 11/1812010 uncollectable $96.88 

12/31/2018 9/9/2010 5/5/2011 uncollectable $0.32 

12/31/2018 9/9/2010 5/5/2011 uncollectable $74.61 

12/31/2018 9/9/2010 5/5/2011 uncollectable $82.03 

12/3112018 9/9/2010 5/5/2011 uncollectable $30.09 

12/3112018 9/912010 515/2011 uncollectable $22.66 

12/3112018 9/9/2010 515/2011 uncollectable $22.66 

12/31/2018 12/10/2010 2/7/2012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/10/2010 217/2012 uncollectable $41 .56 

12/31/2018 12/10/2010 2/7/2012 uncollectable $37.62 

12/3112018 12110/2010 2/7/2012 uncollectable $46.53 

12/3112018 12/10/2010 217/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/3112018 12110/2010 217/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/31/2018 12/10/2010 217/2012 uncollectable $45.21 

12/3112018 1/1012012 4/16/2012 uncollectable $0.21 

12/3112018 1/10/2012 411612012 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/8/2012 5/6/2015 uncollectable $46.53 

12/31/2018 6/6/2012 516/2015 uncollectable $2.73 

12/3112018 6/8/2012 5/6/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12131/2018 6/812012 516/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 6/8/2012 5/6/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12/3112018 4/812013 1114/2015 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 4/8/2013 1/14/2015 uncollectable $37.62 

12/31/2018 4/812013 1114/2015 uncollectable $37.62 

12/3112018 41812013 1/14/2015 uncollectable $60.39 

12/3112018 4/812013 1/14/2015 uncollectable $45.21 

12131/2018 121612013 6/2312014 uncollectable $37.62 

12/3112018 12/6/2013 6/23/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 121612013 6/23/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 12/6/2013 6123/2014 uncollectable $30.03 

12/31/2018 7/9/2014 5/812017 uncollectable $0.09 

12/3112018 1115/2014 4125/2015 uncollectable $31 .78 
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EXHIBIT #9 



MARTIN COUNTY UTILITY BOARD 

606-298-3885 OFFICE 

387 East Main Street, Suite 140 
INEZ, KY 41224 

Martin County Water District 
Regular Meeting 

Tuesday June 12, 2018 

3rd Floor Large Conference Room 
Roy F. Collier Community Center 

John Horn called meeting to order at 8:00a.m. 

606-298-4913 FAX 

In attendance were, Chairman John Horn, James Kerr, John Hensley, Jaryd Crum, Rex 
Endicott, Brian Cumbo, John Mills, Marcie Dials, and Linda & Raymond Sumpter, Big 
Sandy ADD, Nina McCoy 

Approval of Minutes: 

• Motion by James Kerr and .seconded by John Hensley, to approve the Minutes as 
presented. Motion Carried 

Accounts Pavable: 

• Linda Sumpter said that there was improvement for May. 
• Motion made by James Kerr and seconded by John Hensley to approve budget. 
• See attachment #1 

Management Report-Greg Scott: 

• General Manager's Report 
• See attachment #2 

Operations Report-John Mills: 

• See attachment #3 



ARC grant forms and agreement: 

• Need letter from CPA. 
• Motion made by John Hensley and seconded by James Kerr to name an advisory 

board. Members are Jaryd Crum, John Horn, and Jimmy Kerr. Motion carried. 
• Motion made by James Kerr and seconded by Jaryd Crum to have John Hensley 

and John Horn's signatures authorized on an interest bearing account for the 
ARC grant. 

• Board signed several resolutions. See attachment #4. 

General Manager job description: 

• Motion made by Jaryd Crum and seconded by James Kerr to post the General 
Manager's job. Motion carried. 

Tariff review and recommended changes: 

• Motion made by John Hensley and seconded by Jaryd Crum to add a re-connect 
and disconnect fee to the tariff and re-wording of the disconnect process. Motion 
carried. 

• Brian Cumbo suggested the fire department penalty for not reporting usage be 
set at $100.00. 

Discussion of Prestonsburg City Utirities current operating agreement: 
possible lease and action: · 

• James Kerr said he had a meeting with them and a purchase is not happening. 
The lease is still pending. Prestonsburg asked MCWD to come up with new rates. 

• Board wants to suspend the joint operating agreement, and Prestonsburg pumps 
only the exact amount the prison uses. MCWD will only pay for water with a 
purchase order. 

• MCWD needs a pumping schedule. 
• Jaryd Crum and James Kerr will meet with Prestonsburg again to discuss. 

Water loss report: 

• Kentucky Rural Water is helping with finding water loss and doing reports. 

2 



Insurance Policies: 

• Earlena Duncan from Elite Insurance presented options. MCWD will keep paying 
100% of the premiums, but chose Option #3 . Motion made by James Kerr and 
seconded by John Hensley to approve pending new search. Motion approved . 

• See attachment #5. 

Barbi Ann Maynard clean up project: 

• She will do the project on July 21st. No one can be on the dam or spillway. Brian 
Cumbo is preparing a waver for participants to sign. 

Establish policy for what constitutes bad debt and timeline for writing it off: 

• Motion made by James Kerr and seconded by John Hensley to write off any bills 
older than two years and to write a policy regarding bad debt. Motion approved. 

Executive Session: 

• No executive session needed. 

Additional Business: 

• Suggestion was made to move the board meeting to the 3rd Tuesday of the 
month. James Kerr made motion and John Hensley seconded. Motion approved. 

• Board wants to put out an RFP for other engineering firms. 

Adjourn: 

• No other business, a motion was made by James Kerr and seconded by John 
Hensley to adjourn. Motion Carried 

John Horn, Chairman James Kerr, Treasurer 

Rex Endicott, Board Member John Hensley, Secretary 
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Jaryd Crum, Board Member 
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EXHIBIT #10 



Cunent Assets 
04-135-1 KACO- Sinking Fund 
51-136-6 IUA-SinkingFund 
53-694-6 RD- Sinking Fund 
04-137-8 K.ACO-Sinking Fund 
Regions Trust--Sinking Fund 
Debt Surcharge Fw1d - 613193 
17-492-0 KIA-Depreciation Fund 
04-138-6 RD- Depreciation Fund 
56-407-9 Grant Fund 
Grant Fund 2 
Cash on Hand 
Cash on Hand 
Cash on Hand 
Cash on Hand 
51-757-7 Sec A Revenue 
60-094-6 Revenue EFT 
04-134-3 Operatio11 & Maint 
76-994-0 Payroll 
18-445-4 Sec A Security Dep 
10-550-3 Sec B Security Dep 
Customer AIR 
Retumed Checks 
Accum Provision for Uncollect 
Accounts Rec fr Associated Co 
Plant Materials and S·upplies 
Prepayments 
Accmed Utility Revenues 

Total Current Assets 

Pro-perty and Equipment 
Accumulated Depreciation-UPIS 
La11d and Land Rights 
Structmes and Improvements 
Collecting & Impounding Peserv 
Lakes, River & Other Intakes 
Power Generation Equipment 
Pumping Equipment 
Water Treatment Equipment 
Dist Reservoirs & Standpipes 
Transmission & Dist Mains 
Meters & Meter Installations 
Hydrants 
Other Plant & Mise Equipment 
Office Fumiture & Equipment 
Transportation Equipment 
Tools, Sl10p & Garage EqLLipment 
Laboratmy Equipment 
Power Operated Equipment 
Communication Equipment 

Total Property and Equipment 

Other Assets 
Mise- Deferred Pension Outflo 

Total Other Assets 

Total Assets 

$ 

MARTIN COUNTY WATER DJSTRICT 
Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2018 

63.19 
8,186.30 
2,256.27 
3,430.25 

78,847.63 
25,359.42 

924.34 
4,646.02 
8,245.77 

52.87 
200.00 
200.00 
300.00 
200,00 

74,211.40 
13,385.40 

1,360.58 
14,409.20 
23,331.91 

129,233.22 
563,015.01 

2,188.76 
(361,716.49) 

39,910.28 
8,376.76 

17,648 .31 
239,245.11 

(15 , 768,861.04) 
214,713.83 
500,263.89 
288,202.65 

2,173,720.33 
15,000.00 

392,556.99 
4,929,868.17 
4,071,501.55 

20,260,020.76 
513,797.32 

2,969.00 
886,851.68 
177,296.04 
329,570.05 

29,534.16 
14,402.81 
43,192.91 
16,896.88 

504,402.00 

ASSETS 

897,511.51 

19,091,497.98 

504,402.00 

$ 20,493,411.49 

No Assurance Provided 



Cmrent Liabilities 
Other Defe1red Debits 
Accounts Payable 
Customer Deposits 
Accrued Taxes-PR SS/MC 
Accrued Taxes-PR SUTA 
Accrued Interest on LIT Debt 
Accrued Interest on Other Liab 
Matw·ed Long-Term Debt- KIA 
Matmed Long-Term Debt- US 
Matured Long-Term Debt- KRWFC 
Tax Collections Payable-Sales 
Tax Collections Payable-School 
Tax Collections Payable-KY 
Tax Collections Payable-Retr 
Tax Collections Payable-401K 
Tax Collections Payable-AFLAC 
Tax Collections Payable-Martin 
Mise CmTent & Accrned Liab 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Bonds Payable- KY Rural Water 
Cunent Classification- KY RW 
Notes Payable- KlA 
Lease Payable- KACO 
Cu11'ent Classification -KIA 
Cunent Classification - US 
Other- Net Pension Liability 
Unamm1ized Premium on Debt 
Other Inflow Resources-Pension 
Other Defe1red Credits 

Total Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Capital 
Unappropiated Retained Earn 
Grants In Aid Of Construction · 
Gov't Grants in Aid of Canst 
Contributions in Aid of Canst 
Tap Fees 
Retained Earnings 
Net Income 

Total Capital 

Total Liabilities & Capital 

$ 

MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
Balance Sl1ect 

December 3 1, 2 018 

LIABILJTIES AND CAPITAL 

(369.43) 
1,098,160.65 

137,020.38 
888.48 
179.64 

32,572.97 
3,598.76 

51,442.62 
10,000.00 
55,000.00 

1,474.87 
3,880.93 
2,485.64 
6,516.69 

60.00 
426.19 

1,579.17 
29,123.91 

1,434,041.47 

1,822,419.25 
(55,000.00) 
492,754.44 
106,221.96 
(51,442.62) 
(10,000.00) 

1,072,039.00 
19,634.64 

220,865.00 
16,435.79 

3,633,927.46 

5,067,968.93 

(11 ,675,557 .42) 
13,197,146.17 
14,439,514.29 

494,379.60 
1,283,622.17 

(1,557,185.35) 
(756,476.90) 

15,425,442.56 

$ 20,493,411.49 

No Assurance Provided 



MARTIN COUNTY\VATER DISTRICT 
Income Statement 

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 20 18 

Current Month Year to Date 
Revenues 
Interest & Dividend Income $ 6.06 0.00 $ 361.93 O.Q2. 
Unmetered Water Revenues 35.00 0.02 417.33 0.02 
Metered Sales To Resid Cust 141,297.35 67.32 1,681,713.13 73.10 
Metered Sales to Conun Cust 24,729.92 11.78 288,224.93 12.53 
Metered Sales to Comm Exempt 14,908.44 7.10 77,122.17 3.35 
Metered Sales to Public Auth 0.00 0.00 2,030.25 0.09 
Miscellaneous Service Revenue 1,674.00 0.80 39,535.87 1.72 
Other Water Revenues-Penalitie 6,293.72 3.00 73,352.14 3.19 
Other Water Revenues 0.00 0.00 300.00 O.Ql 
Other Revenues - JW 0.00 0.00 (272.40) (0.01) 
Other Revenues 6,554.91 3.12 6,709.98 0.29 
Other Revenues-Vendors Comp 21.67 O.Gl 281.00 0.01 
Other Water Revenues-Sur Charg 14,365.61 6.84 130,848.87 5.69 

Total Revenues 209,886.68 100.00 2,300,625.20 100.00 

Cost of Sales 

Total Cost of Sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Gross Profit 209,886.68 100.00 2,300,625.20 100.00 

Expenses 
Depreciation Expense 64,441.92 30.70 773,303.04 33.61 
Utility Regulat01y Assess Fees 0.00 0.00 4,071.38 0.18 
Payroll Taxes-SS & MC 4,126.80 1.97 44,494.98 1.93 
Payroll Taxes-Unemployment 35.81 0.02 1,061.43 0.05 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,055.48 0.50 56,769.91 2.47 
Amortization ofPrem on Debt (62.73) (0.03) (752.76) (0.03) 
Salaries and Wages- Emp TO 13,917.05 6.63 178,674.18 7.77 
.Salaries and Wages- Emp DO 6,841.29 3.26 83,757.21 3.64 
Salaries and Wages- Emp DM 12,074.79 5.75 119,231.19 5.18 
Salaries and Wages· Emp DM 17,381.84 8.28 102,625.65 4.46 
Salaries and Wages- Emp CAE 3,508.39 1.67 56,570.82 2.46 
Salaries and Wages· Emp AG 750.00 0.36 42,923.07 1.87 
Employee Pensions & Ben TO 4,569.94 2.18 30,541.08 1.33 
Employee Pensions & Ben DO 483.26 0.23 5,799.12 0.25 
Employee Pensions & Ben DO 0.00 0.00 (1,534.92) (0.07) 
Employee Pensions & Ben DM 7,925.52 3.78 34,181.26 1.49 
Employee Pensions & Ben CAE 2,560.37 1.22 18,235.70 0.79 
Employee Pensions & Ben AG 818.13 0.39 7,998.67 0.35 
Purchased Water SO 14,169.23 6.75 204,092.66 8.87 
Purchased Water SO 0.00 0.00 894.14 0.04 
Purchased Power SO 13,849.76 6.60 117,112.43 5.09 
Purchased Power TO 10,488.82 5.00 121,003.12 5.26 
Purchased Power DO 7,508.62 3.58 90,269.92 3.92 
Pmchased Power AG 462.78 0.22 4,265.70 0.19 
Chemicals TO 12,251.60 5.84 185,366.23 8.06 
Materials & Supplies SO 138.68 0.07 74,028.59 3.22 
Materials & Supplies SM 0.00 0.00 2,466.00 0.11 
Materials & Supplies TO 0.00 0.00 42,679.11 1.86 
Materials & Supplies TM 0.00 0.00 (995.00) (0.04) 
Materials & Supplies TM 0.00 0.00 995.00 0.04 
Materials & Supplies DO 0.00 0.00 14.83 0.00 
Materials & Supplies DO 0.00 0.00 14,415.15 0.63 
Materials & Supplies DM 5,139.04 2.45 134,251.52 5.84 
Materials & Supplies CAE 1,265.22 0.60 17,287.00 0.75 
Materials & Supplies AG 0.00 0.00 411.95 0.02 
Contractual Ser-Eng SM 0.00 0.00 960.00 0.04 
Con!Tactual Ser-Eng DM 0.00 0.00 1,788.00 0.08 

No Assurance Provided 



MARTIN COUNTY \VATEH. DISTRICT 
Income Stat em en t 

For the Twelve Month s Ending December 31, 20 18 

Current Monlh Year to Date 
Contractual Ser-Acct AG 3,500.00 1.67 42,000.00 1.83 
Contractual Ser-Leg AG 0.00 0.00 48,935.38 2.13 
Contractual Ser-Wtr Test TO 0.00 0.00 18,404.75 0.80 
Contractual Ser-Other SO 0.00 0.00 840.00 0.04 
Contractual Ser-Other SO 0.00 0.00 20,172.00 0.88 
Contractual Ser-Other SM 0.00 0.00 4,549.97 0.20 
Contractual Ser-Other TO 0.00 0.00 2,250.00 0.10 
Contractual Ser-Other TM 0.00 0.00 7,456.00 0.32 
Contractual Ser-Other DO 0.00 0.00 1,101.35 0.05 
Contractual Ser-Otber DM 1,116.00 0.53 54,467.73 2.37 
Contractual Ser-Other CAE 0.00 0.00 7,739.98 0.34 
Contractual Ser-Other AG 1,120.00 0.53 7,490.00 0.33 
Rental ofBld/Rl Prop DO 0.00 0.00 1,014.09 0.04 
Rental ofBld/Rl Prop DM 0.00 0.00 525.00 O.Q2 
Rental ofBld/RJ Prop CAE 730.26 0.35 8,681.11 0.38 
Rental of Equipment SO 0.00 0.00 2,719.50 0.12 
Rental of Equipment SO 0.00 0.00 75,972.90 3.30 
Rental of Equipment TO 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.11 
Rental of Equipment DO 0.00 0.00 679.88 0.03 
Rental of Equipment DM 0.00 0.00 148.95 0.01 
Rental of Equipment GA 0.00 0.00 5.00 0.00 
Transp011ation Expense SO 0.00 0.00 190.01 0.01 
TranspOliation Expense DO 0.00 0.00 3,052.96 0.13 
Transpor1ation Expense DM 0.00 0.00 145.75 O.Dl 
Transportation Expense DM 1,356.44 0.65 43,666.51 1.90 
Transportation Expense CAE 492.58 0.23 5,688.00 0.25 
Transportation Expense AG 107.00 0.05 6,155.13 0.27 
Insurance-Vehicles SO 38.47 0.02 461.64 0.02 
Insurance-Vehicles SM 38.47 0.02 461.64 0.02 
Insurance-Vehicles TO 38.47 0.02 461.64 0.02 
IJJsurance-Vehicles TM 38.47 0.02 461.64 0.02 
Insurance-Vehicles DO 246.20 0.12 2,954.40 0.13 
Insurance-Vehicles DM 269.29 0.13 3,231.48 0.14 
Insurance-Vehicles CAE 38.47 0.02 461.64 0.02 
Insurance-Vehicles AG 61.55 0,03 738.60 0.03 
Insurance-Gen Liab SO 146.59 0,07 1,759.08 0.08 
Insurance-Gen Liab SM 97.73 0.05 1,172.76 0.05 
Insurance-Gen Liab TO 293.18 0.14 3,518.16 0.15 
Insurance-Gen Liab TM 122.16 0.06 1,465.92 0.06 
Insurance-Gen Liab DO 757.37 0.36 9,088.44 0.40 
Insurance-Gen Liab DM 781.80 0.37 9,381.60 0.41 
Insurance-Gen Liab CAE 97.73 0.05 1,172.76 0.05 
Insurance-Gen Liab AG 146.59 0.07 1,759.08 0.08 
Insmance-Workers Comp TO 1,251.62 0.60 15,019.44 0.65 
Insurance-Workers Camp DO 401.63 0.19 4,819.56 0.21 
Insurance-Workers Camp DM 927.15 0.44 11,125.80 0.48 
Insurance-Workers Camp CAE 31.13 0.01 373.56 0.02 
Insunmce-Workers Comp AG 501.13 0.24 6,013.56 0.26 
Insurance-Other CAE 331.35 0.16 3,976.20 0.17 
Insurance-Other AG 470.65 0.22 5,647.80 0.25 
Miscellaneous Expense TO 334.30 0.16 4,657.92 0.20 
Miscellaneous Expense TM 0.00 0.00 245 .04 0.01 
Miscellaneous Expense DO 0.00 0.00 51.50 0.00 
Miscellaneous Expense DO 0.00 0.00 4,723.49 0.21 
Miscellaneous Expense DM 0.00 0.00 1,076.07 0.05 
Miscellaneous Expense CAE 215.81 0.10 2,852.03 0.12 
Miscellaneous Expense CAE 0.00 0.00 1,254.61 0.05 
Miscellaneous Expense CAE- 0/S 0.00 0.00 0.30 0.00 
Miscellaneous Expense AG 0.00 0.00 2,252.23 0.10 
Miscellaneous Expense AG 539.22 0.26 18,653.20 0.81 

Total Expenses 222,340.42 105.93 3,057,102.10 132.88 

No As3urance Provided 



Net Income $ 

MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRJCT 
Income Statement 

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2018 

Curren! Monih Year to Date 

(12,453,74) (5.93) $ (756,476.90) (32.88) 

No Assurance Provided 
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White & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise fund of the 
Martin County Water District (District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity' s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the enterprise fund of the District, as of 
December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementmy Information 

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part 
of the financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who consider it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on 
the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 30, 2016, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with ce1tain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control-over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

6)1£;{:} @J ~(}(>{Q/:eJ, ~ 

White & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30, 2016 
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ASSETS: 

Martin County Water District 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31 , 2013 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 

Customer, net 
Other, net 

Inventory · 
Prepaid expenses 
Accrued utility revenues 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities: 

Payroll taxes 
Other 
Interest 

Customer deposits 
Current portion of long-term debt: 

Bonds 
Note 
Capital lease 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt: 

Bonds 
Note 
Capital lease 

NET POSITION 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Reserves 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 
Total liabilities and net position 

$ 

2013 

100,010 

292,103 
7,366 

25,818 
22,649 

263,723 
711 ,669 

202,473 
272,214 

21,084,894 
21 ,559,581 

$ ===2=2,=2=71=,2=5=1= 

$ 537,111 

3,751 
78,175 
51,809 

126,506 

117,698 
45,632 
10,000 

970,683 

2,008,100 
702,322 
136,222 

2,846,644 
3,817,327 

18,337,133 

202,473 
(85,683) 

18,453,923 

$ = ==22=,2=7=1 =·2=51= 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements . 
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Martin County Water District 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES and CHANGES in NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended December 31,2013 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Water sales : 

Residential 
Commercial 
Unmetered 

Other sales : 
Public authorities 
Penalties 
Other 
Vendors 

Miscellaneous 
Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Purchased water 
Chemicals 
Materials & supplies 
Contractual services 
Rental 
Transportation 
Insurance 
Bad debt 
Regulatory assess fees 
Depreciation 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Earnings on investments 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 

Tap fees 
Capital contributions 

Total contributions 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 

NET POSITION, ENDING 

$ 

2013 

1,774,056 
436,351 

1,449 

58,581 
79,303 

2,613 
296 

15,251 
2,367,900 

568,421 
323,638 
343,391 
121,022 
287,660 
152,687 
233,560 
64,015 
59,147 
61 ,999 

4,050 
781,395 

45 508 
3,046,495 

{678,595} 

246 
(1 19,033) 
(118,788) 

(797,382} 

19,781 
61 2, 102 
631,882 

(165,500} 

18,619,424 

$ ===1=8=,4=53='=92=3= 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Martin County Water District 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers and other sources 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments for employees and benefits 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Purchases and construction of capital assets 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Interest paid on long-term debt 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment income received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided 

(used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Accounts receivable 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accrued revenues 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Customer deposits 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Noncash item: 
Capital contributions were $fl31,RR2. 

Interest expense: 
Interest expense was $119,033. 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

5 

$ 

2013 

2,367,900 
(1 ,274,723) 

(892,060) 
201 ,117 

11,879 
(154,614) 
(119,033) 
(261 ,768) 

246 
"246 

(60,405) 

362,889 

$ ===3=0=2=,4=84== 

$ (678,595) 

781,395 
19,143 

988 
. (619) 

(177,251) 
261,604 
(14,996) 

9,448 

$ = = ====2=0=1 =·1,:,;17;, 



Martin County \Vater District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year ended December 31,2013 

NOTE 1 -Reporting entity and significant accounting policies 

(a) Description of the reporting entity 

The Ma1iin County Water District (District) was authorized by action of the Martin 
County Fiscal Comi. The Martin County Water District Side A was formed 
December 1, 1962. On August 31, 1996 the Fiscal Court, with approval of the 
Kentucky Public Service Commission, merged Section A and B. The District is a 
Special Purpose Government Entity (SPGE) recognized by the Kentucky Department 
of Local Government. The District is governed by the Martin County Utility Board, 
which is comprised of Commissioners appointed by the Martin County Fiscal Court. 

The District, for financial purposes, includes the transactions relevant to the operation 
of the Martin County Water District. The financial statements presented herein do 
not include other agencies which have been fom1ed under applicable state laws or 
separate and distinct units of government apart from the Martin County Water 
District. 

(b) Basis of accounting 

The District operates and reports as an enterprise fund utilizing the accrual method of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized 
when incurred. Operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from 
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange 
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal 
values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, and investment earnings 
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they 
are needed. 

(c) Applicable accounting standards 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards for financial statements of state and local governments. 
The District has elected to follow all pronouncements of the GAS B. 

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District's enterprise fund 
are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital 
assets. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are reported in the accompanying statement of net position at fair value, 
except for certificates of deposit and investment contracts that are repo1ied at cost 
because they are not transferable and they have terms that are not affected by changes 
in market interest rates. 

Changes in fair value that occur during a calendar year are recognized as investment 
income reported for that year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes 
in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of 
investments. 

In accordance with the District's investment policy, the District may invest in the 
following: 

Certificates ofDeposit 
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
Money Market Mutual Funds 

Cunently, the District has no investments. 

(e) Statement of cash flows 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined 
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash and investments, and highly 
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase. 
For financial statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are shown as 
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents. 

(f) Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent amounts held in trust at the bank and 
are set aside for bond sinking, operation and depreciation funds as required by the 
bond ordinance. 

(g) Capital assets 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for 
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their 
fair market values as of the date received. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

All repmied capital assets are depreciated with the exception of land and construction 
in progress. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the 
related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives: 

Description 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Technology equipment 
Equipment 

(h) Employee leave benefits 

Estimated Lives 
10-50 years 
10-25 years 
5-20 years 
5-50 years 

The District's policy on vacation shall accrue at the rate of eighty (80) hours per year 
for one (1) to five (5) years of full time employment, henceforth employees' may eam 
an additional eight (8) hours per year up to a maximum of one hundred and twenty 
(120) hours. Maximum accrual of each employee is one hundred and sixty (160) 
hours. No monetary value is given to the accrual of vacation. 

The District's employees' shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per 
month to a maximum of four hundred and eighty (480) hours. No monetary value is 
given to the accrual of sick leave. 

(i) Use of estimates 

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the District's 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

(j) Inventory 

The District maintains a detailed inventory of supplies needed to maintain the water 
infrastructure. Inventory is recorded at historical cost and expensed when used. 

(k) Prepaid expenses 

Payments made by the District that benefit periods beyond December 31st are 
classified as prepaid expenses. A current asset is recorded at the time of purchase and 
an expense is made per the consumption method. The prepayment of expenses is for 
the numerous insurances required on behalf of the District's employees' and its 
infrastructure. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

(1) Accrued utility revenues 

Accrued utility revenues are the accrual of water sales at December 31st that has not 
been billed to customers. 

(m)Accounts receivable, net 

The District accounts for the billings to customers as Customer accounts receivable. 
The amounts determined not to be collectable have been deducted. 

(n) Capital contributions 

Capital contributions include the amounts paid by state and local governments that 
arise from contributions of capital assets, or from grants or outside contributions of 
resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction. 

( o) Reserves for net position 

The amount restricted in net positio~ is the amount that has been set aside for 
payments of long-term debt. The restricted amount equals the reshicted cash and 
cash equivalents as reported in the statement of net position. 

(p) Net investment in capital assets 

Net investment in capital assets is the net amount of the capital assets less the 
amounts payable for long-term debt financing those capital assets. 

( q) Customer deposits 

Deposits required by the District for each customer to receive services. The deposits 
are maintained by the District and returned when services are no longer used or other 
qualifying event by the District's policy. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

NOTE 2- Budgetary data 

The District's Board of Commissioners receives and approves an annual budget from 
management each calendar year fulfilling the requirement to prepare an annual 
budget as required by all SPGE's for the Kentucky Department of Local Government. 

· NOTE 3 -Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2013 are classified m the 
accompanying financial statements as follows: 

Statement ofNet Position: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

$ 100,010 
202,473 

$ 302,483 

Cash and cash equivalents as ofDecember 31, 2013 consist of the following: 

Cash on hand $ 900 
Deposits with financial institutions 301,583 

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 302.483 

Custodial risk 

Custodial risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not 
be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able 
to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession 
of a another party. As of June 301

\ the District's deposits with financial institutions 
are non-interest bearing, and have a limited insurance coverage with the federal 
deposit insurance corporation up to $250,000. As of December 31,2013, the District 
deposits with financial institutions exceeded the federal depository insurance limits 
by $110,085. The difference has been covered by securities pledged by the financial 
institution holding the deposits. 
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NOTES TO THE FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

NOTE 4 - Capital assets 

Capital asset activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2013, was as follows: 

12/31/2012 Additions Deductions 12/31/2013 

Land $ 209,714 $ 5,000 $ $ 214,714 

Construction in progress 57,500 57,500 

Structures 500,264 500,264 
Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 288,203 288,203 
Lakes, rivers and intakes 1,021,403 1,021,403 

Pumping Equip 305,429 3,458 308,887 

Water Treatment Equipment 4,811,040 1,930 4,812,970 

Distribution reservoir & standpipes 3,683,916 387,585 4,071,502 

Transmission & Distribution mains 19,890,585 169,490 20,060,075 

Meters & meter installation 483,949 483,949 

Hydrants 2,969 2,969 

Other plant & mise equip 854,900 7,064 861,964 

Office Furniture & equipment 172,251 3,000 175,251 

Transportation equipment 324,570 324,570 

Tools 29,134 400 29,534 
Lab Equipment 14,403 14,403 
Power Operated equipment 43,193 43,193 

Communication equipment 16,897 16,897 

Total at historical cost $ 32,652,818 $ 635,428 $ $ 33,288,246 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Structures $ 87,709 $ 10,183 $ $ 97,892 

Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 62,404 1,555 63,959 

Lakes, rivers and intakes 504,239 20,429 524,668 

Pumping Equip 236,829 31,813 268,642 

Water Treatment Equipment 1,199,067 92,240 1,291,307 

Distribution reservor & standpipes 777,409 76,983 854,392 

Transmission & Distribution mains 6,808,880 494,899 7,303,779 

Meters & meter installation 171,146 13,937 185,083 

Hydrants 1,754 89 1;843 

Other plant & mise equip 738,046 15,848 753,894 

Office Furniture & equipment 169,453 2,464 171,917 

Transportation equipment 291,871 19,484 311,355 

Tools 29,134 33 29,167 

Lab Equipment 14,401 14,401 

Power Operated equipment 43,192 43,192 

Communication equipment 14,209 1,438 15,647 

Total accumulated depreciation $ 11,149,743 $ 781,395 $ $ 11,931,138 

Capital Assets-net $ 21 ,503,075 $ (145,967) $ $ 21,357,108 

Depreciation expense was $781,395 for the year. 

11 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

NOTE 5- Long-term debt 

Note Issue 

KIA 

Long-tem1 debt activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2013, was as 
follows: 

Note payable 

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as a note payable 
represents the District's future obligations to make payments related to a loan 
obtained from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authmity (KIA) to provide water to 
customers in the Martin County area. 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy debt 
service. The original amount of the outstanding note, maturity date, interest rate, and 
outstanding balance at December 31, 2013 is summarized below: 

Original 

Amount 

Maturity Interest 

$ 1,329,826 2027 3% 

2012 
Debt 

Outstanding Additions 

$ 792,240 $ 

2013 
Debt 

Retirements Outstanding 

$ 44,285 $ 747,955 

The current amount due for the note payable as of December 31, 2013, is $45,632. 
The collateral for the note is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future note 
payable obligation is as follows: 

Principal Interest ..IQ!ru 

2014 $ 45,632 $ 21,815 $ 67,447 
2015 47,020 20,427 67,447 
2016 48,450 18,997 67,447 
2017 49,924 17,523 67,447 
2018 51,443 16,004 67,447 

2019-2023 281,657 55,577 337,235 
2024-2027 223,828 12,237 236,064 

$ 747,955 $ 162,579 $ 910,534 

Capital/ease 

The amount shown in the accompanying financial statements as capital lease 
represents the District's purchase of vehicles and equipment by obtaining funding 
from the Kentucky Association of Counties (KACO). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt 
service. The original amount of outstanding capital lease, maturity date, interest rate, 
and outstanding balance, at December 31, 2013 is summarized below: 

Maturity Interest 2013 Lease 
Captal Lease Issue 

Original 
Amount Date Rates 

2012 Lease 
Outstanding Additions Retirements Outstanding 

KACO Leasing Trust $200,000 2025 1.85% $ 156,222 $ 10,000 $ 146,222 

Bond Issues 

GMAC 
RD 1 
RD 5 
RD 8 
RD10 

The cuiTent amount due for the capital lease as ofDecember 31,2013, is $10,000. The 
collateral for the lease is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future capital 
lease obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

2014 $ 10,000 $ 6,099 $ 16,099 
2015 10,000 5,669 15,669 
2016 10,000 5,264 15,264 
2017 10,000 4,834 14,834 
2018 10,000 4,431 14,431 

2019-2023 70,000 14,645 84,645 
2024-2025 26,222 1,562 27,784 

$ 146,222 $ 42,503 $ 188,725 

Bonds payable 

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial · statements as bonds payable 
represents the District's initiation and improvements of its water system by obtaining 
funding from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Division of Rural 
Development (RD), and additionally, the loan obtained financing from GMAC. 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt 
service. The original amount of outstanding bonds, maturity date, interest rate, and 
outstanding balance, at December 31, 2013 is summarized below: 

2012 2013 
Original Maturity Interest Debt Debt 

Amount Date Rates Outstanding Additions Retirements Outstanding 

$ 560,000 2015 5% $ 122,000 $ $ 40,902 $ 81,098 

554,000 2036 4.5% 444,500 10,500 434,000 
600,000 2040 4.5% 523,400 9,700 513,700 

910,000 2047 4.375% 879,000 11,000 868,000 
$ 241,000 2047 4.375% 232,000 3,000 229,000 

$ 2,200,900 $ $ 75.102 $ 2,125,798 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

The cuuent amount due for the bonds as of December 31,2013, is $117,698 . The 
collateral for the bonds is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future bond 
obligations are as follows: 

Princ ipa l Interest Interest 

2014 $ 117,698 $ 99,189 $ 216,887 
2015 37,100 93,487 130,587 
2016 39,500 91,818 131,318 
2017 41,100 90,041 131,141 
2018 43,500 88,188 131,688 

2019-2023 244,000 410,134 654,134 
2024-2028 304,000 349,938 653,938 
2029-2033 377,200 275,292 652,492 
2034-2038 403,000 184,114 587,114 
2039-2043 293,700 102,313 396,013 
2044-2047 225,000 38,100 263,100 

$ 2,125,798 $ 1,822,612 $ 3,948,411 

NOTE 6- Pension plan 

ounty Emnloyees Retirement Systeil1 

Employees who work an average of 1 00 hours per month participate in the County 
Employees Retirement System of Kentucky (CERS), a cost sharing, multiple­
employer public employees' retirement system created by and operating under 
Kentucky Law. 

The County Employees Retirement System covers substantially all regular full-time 
employees of the District. The plan provides for retirement, disability and death 
benefits. CERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained in 
writing from the County Employee Retirement System, 1260 Louisville Road, 
Perimeter Park West, and Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601. 

For participating employees who established an account prior to July 1, 2008, they 
contribute 5% of the creditable compensation. For employees hired after July 1, 
2008, they contribute 6% of the creditable compensation. Employer contribution 
rates are intended to fund the normal cost on a current basis plus one percent (1 %) of 
unfunded past service costs per annum plus interest at the actuarial assumed rate. The 
Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems determines such contribution 
rates each biennium. The cuuent District contribution rate for employees is 19.55%. 
The District contributed $96,856 of the employee's compensation during the calendar 
year ended December 31,2013. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

The District's required contributions (both withholding and match) for pension 
obligations to CERS for the calendar years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 
2011 were $122,085, $104,718 and $94,145 respectively. 

NOTE 7- Change in accounting policy 

During the calendar year ending December 31, 2013, management adopted the 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63. This statement created 
the statement of net position which replaced the previous statement of net assets. 

NOTE 8 -Risk management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to illegal acts, torts, 
theft/damage/ destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and 
natural disasters. To obtain insurance for workers' compensation, errors and 
omission, and general liability coverage, the District purchased commercial insurance 
coverage. 

NOTE 9- Subsequent events 

The District has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2016, the date of 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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White & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standard issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the enterprise fund of Martin County Water District (District), 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
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we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Distlict's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination 
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

White & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30, 2016 
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MARTIN COUNTY \VATER DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 

SECTION I- SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

What type of report was issued for the financial state~ents? 

Were there significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed? 
If so, was any significant deficiencies material (GAGAS)? 

Was any material noncompliance reported (GAGAS)? 

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

There were no findings. 
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Unmodified 

None reported 
N/A 
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MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRJ OR AUDIT FINDlNGS 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 

There were no findings from the prior year. 
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September 30, 2016 

White & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

We have audited the financial statements of the enterprise fund of the Martin County 
Water District for the year ended December 31, 2013 . Professional standards requhe that 
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted 
auditing standards and, Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain infonnation 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such -
information in our letter to you dated May 19, 2016. Professional standards also require 
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. 
The significant accounting policies used by Martin County Water District are described 
in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in Note 7 to the financial statements, 
the District changed accounting policies related to financial statement presentation by 
adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards GASB Statement No. 63, in 
the calendar year ended December 31, 2013. We noted no transactions entered into by the 
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 
the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and 
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are 
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because 
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the enterprise fund was the useful lives 
and residual values of capital assets: 

Management's estimate of the useful lives and residual values of capital assets is 
based on historical trends. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the useful lives and residual values of capital assets in determining that it 
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements 
identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them 
to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such 
misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit 
procedures and corrected by management were mate1ial, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated September 30, 2016. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing 
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's 
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be 
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting 
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the 
governmental unit's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course 
of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Commissioners and the Martin 
County Fiscal Court and management of the Martin County Water District and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

6}1~ «@ !ffiJoela/;f'o, ~ 
White & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30, 2016 
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White & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise fund of the 
Martin County Water District (District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 

· in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the enterprise fund of the District, as of 
December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Management has omitted the management' s discussion and analysis that accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part 
of the financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who consider it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on 
the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditillg Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 30, 2016, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

6)f,£;e @ ~or-kll,e6, ~ 

White & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30, 2016 
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ASSETS: 

Marlin County Water District 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31 , 2014 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 

Customer, net 
Other, net 

Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accrued utility revenues 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities: 

Payroll taxes 
Other 
Interest 

Customer deposits 
Current portion of long-term debt: 

Bonds 
Note 
Capital lease 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt: 

Bonds 
Note 
Capital lease 

NET POSITION 

. Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Reserves 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 
Total liabilities and net position 

$ 

2014 

82,395 

251,056 
3,227 

26,272 
18,990 

243,652 
625,593 

193,932 
214,714 

21,445,957 
21,854,603 

$ = ==2=2=,4=80=='=19=6= 

$ 347,722 

3,910 
59,545 

4,977 
133,349 

47,020 
10,000 

606,523 

1,971,000 
655,302 
126,222 

2,752,524 
3,359,047 

18,851 '127 

193,932 
76,091 

19, 12·1 '149 

$ = ==22===,4=80='=19=6= 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements . 
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Martin County Water District 
STATEfViENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES and CHANGES in 1\!ET POSITION 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Water sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Unmetered 

Other sales: 
Public authorities 
Penalties 
Other 
Vendors 

Miscellaneous 
Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Purchased water 
Chemicals 
Materials & supplies 
Contractual services 
Rental 
Transportation 
Insurance 
Bad debt 
Regulatory assess fees 
Depreciation 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATIONS INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Earnings on investments 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 

Tap fees 
Contributions 

Total contributions 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 

NET POSITION, ENDING 

$ 

2014 

1,581 ,512 
400,136 

452 

51' 121 
75,242 

141,095 
347 

15,006 
2,264,912 

533,566 
279,131 
334,837 
146,849 
210,528 
137,059 

11 ,864 
68,800 
59,449 
52,402 

4,214 
771,868 

53,427 
2,663,994 

(399,082) 

207 
(114,714) 
(11 4,456) 

(513,538) 

15,914 
1,164,850 
1,180,764 

667,226 

18,453,923 

$ ===1=9=, 1=21=·=14=9= 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Martin County Water Dislrict 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

r=or the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers and other sources 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments for employees and benefits 

Net cash provided (used} by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Purchases and construction of capital assets 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Interest paid on long-term debt 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment income received 

Net cash provided (used} by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided 

(used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Accounts receivable 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accrued revenues 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Customer deposits 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Noncash items: 
Copitnl contributions in the amount of $1,180,764. 

Interest expense: 
Interest expense for the year is $114,714. 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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$ 

2014 

2,264,912 
( 1 ,258,817) 

(812,697) 
193,398 

105,333 
(210,431) 
(1 14,71 4) 
(21 9,81 1) 

257 
257 

(26,156} 

302,484 

$ = =====2=7=6,=32=8= 

$ (399,082) 

771,868 
45,185 

(454) 
. 3,659 

20,071 
(189,389) 

(65,303) 
6,842 

$ ===1~9=3=,3=98= 



Martin County Water District 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPE~..,ISES and CHANGES in NET POSITION 

For lhe Year Ended December 31, 2014 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Water sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Unmetered 

Other sales: 
Public authorities 
Penalties 
Other 
Vendors 

Miscellaneous 
Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Purchased water 
Chemicals 
Materials & supplies 
Contractual services 
Rental 
Transportation 
Insurance 
Bad debt 
Regulatory assess fees 
Depreciation 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATIONS INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Earnings on investments 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 

Tap fees 
Capital contributions 

Total contributions 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 

NET POSITION, ENDING 

$ 

2014 

1,581,512 
400 ,136 

452 

51 ' 121 
75,242 

141 ,095 
347 

15,006 
2,264,912 

533,566 
279,131 
334,837 
146,849 
210,528 
137,059 

11,864 
68,800 
59,449 
52,402 

4,214 
771,868 

53,427 
2,663,994 

(399,082) 

257 
(114,714) 
(114,456) 

(513,538) 

15,914 
1,164,850 
1,180,764 

667,226 

18,453,923 

$ ====1=9=, 1=2=1,=14=9= 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Martin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year ended December 31,2014 

NOTE 1 -Reporting entity and significant accounting policies 

(a) Description of the reporting entity 

The Martin County Water District (District) was authorized by action of the Mmiin 
County Fiscal Court. The Matiin County Water Distlict Side A was formed 
December 1, 1962. On August 31, 1996 the Fiscal Court, with approval of the 
Kentucky Public Service Commission, merged Section A and B. The District is a 
Special Purpose Government Entity (SPGE) recognized by the Kentucky Department 
of Local Government. The District is governed by the Martin County Utility Board, 
which is comprised of Commissioners appointed by the Martin County Fiscal Court. 

The District, for financial purposes, includes the transactions relevm1t to the operation 
of the Martin County Water District. The financial statements presented herein do 
not include other agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws or 
separate and distinct units of government apart from the Martin County Water 
District. 

(b) Basis of accounting 

The District operates and reports as an enterprise fund utilizing the accrual method of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized 
when incurred. Operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from 
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange 
transactions are those ~n which each party receives and gives up essentially, equal 
values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, and investlnent earnings 
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they 
are needed. 

(c) Applicable accounting standards 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards for financial statements of state and local governments. 
The District has elected to follow all pronouncements of the GASB. 

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with ·an enterprise fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District's enterprise 
funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non­
operating revenues and expenses. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are reported in the accompanying statement of net position at fair value, 
except for certificates of deposit and investment contracts that are reported at cost 
because they are not transferable and they have terms that are not affected by changes 
in market interest rates. 

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment 
income reported for that year. Investment income includes interest eamings, changes 
in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of 
investments. 

In accordance with the District's investment policy, the District may invest in the 
following: 

Certificates of Deposit 
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
Money Market Mutual Funds 

Currently, the District has no investments. 

(e) Statement of cash flows 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined 
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash and cash equivalents, and highly 
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase. 
For financial statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are shown as 
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents. Currently, the 
District has no investments. 

(f) Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent amounts held in trust at the bank and 
are set aside for bond sinking, operation and depreciation funds as required by the 
bond ordinance. 

(g) Capital assets 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for 
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their 
fair market values as of the date received. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

All reported capital assets are depreciated with the exception of land and construction 
in progress. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful Jives of the 
related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives: 

Desc1ip tion 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Technology equipment 
Equipment 

(h) Employee leave benefits 

Estimated Lives 
I 0-50 years 
10-25 years 
5-20 years 
5-50 years 

The District's policy on vacation shall accrue at the rate of eighty (80) hours per year 
for one (1) to five (5) years of full time employment, henceforth employees' may earn 
an additional eight (8) hours per year up to a maximum of one hundred and twenty 
(120) hours. Maximum accrual of each employee is one hundred and sixty (160) 
hours. No monetary value is given to the accrual for vacation. 

The District's employees' shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per 
month to a maximum of four hundred and eighty ( 480) hours. No monetary value is 
given to the accrual of sick leave. 

(i) Use of estimates 

The process of preparing financial statements in confmmity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the District's · 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual res11Its could differ from 
those estimates. 

(j) Inventory 

The District maintains a detailed inventory of supplies needed to maintain the water 
infrastructure. Inventory is recorded at historical cost and expensed when used. 

(k) Prepaid expenses 

Payments made by the District that benefit periods beyond December 31st are 
classified as prepaid expenses. A current asset is recorded at the time of purchase and 
an expense is made per the consumption method. The prepayment of expenses is for 
the numerous insurances required on behalf of the District's employees' and its 
infrastructure. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

(1) Accrued utility revenues 

Accrued utility revenues are the accrual of water sales at December 31st that has not 
been billed to customers. 

(m)Accounts receivable, net 

The District accounts for the billings to customers as Customer accounts receivable 
less the amounts detem1ined not to be collectable. 

(n) Capital contributions 

Capital contributions include the amounts paid by state and local governments that 
arise from contributions of capital assets, or from grants or outside contributions of 
resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction. 

( o) Reserves for net position 

The amount restricted in net position is the amount that has been set aside for 
payments of long-tenn debt. The restricted amount equals the restricted cash and 
cash equivalents as reported in the statement of net position. 

(p) Net investment in capital assets 

Net investment in capital assets is the net an1ount of the capital assets less the 
amounts payable for long-term debt financing those capital assets. 

( q) Customer deposits 

Deposits required by the District for each customer to receive services. The deposits 
are maintained by the District and returned when services are no longer used or other 
qualifying event by the District's policy. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

NOTE 2- Budgetary data 

The District's Board of Commissioners receives and approves an annual budget from 
management each calendar year fulfilling the requirement to prepare an annual 
budget as required by all SPGE's for the Kentucky Department of Local Govenunent. 

NOTE 3- Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2014 are classified m the 
accompanying financial statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

$ 82,395 
193,932 

$ 276,327 

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2014 consist of the following: 

Cash on hand $ 900 
Deposits with financial institutions 275,427 

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 275,327 

Custodial risk 

Custodial risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not 
be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able 
to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession 
of a another party. As of June 30th, the District's deposits with financial institutions 
are non-interest bearing, and have a limited insurance coverage with the federal 
deposit insurance corporation up to $250,000. As of December 31,2014, the District 
deposits with financial institutions exceeded the federal depository insurance limits 
by $128,877. The difference has been covered by securities pledged by the financial 
institution holding the deposits. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

NOTE 4- Capital assets 

Capital asset activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows: 

12/3112013 Ad d it ion Dcdu Lion 12/3)12014 

Land $ 214,714 $ $ $ 214,714 
Construction in progress 57,500 57,500 
Stmctures 500,264 500,264 

Collecting & impounding Reservoirs 288,203 288,203 

Lakes, rivers and intakes 1,021 ,403 1,132,350 2,153,753 

Pumping Equip 308,887 581 309,468 

Water Treatment Equipment 4,812,970 4,812,970 

Distribution reservor & standpipes 4,071,502 4,071,502 

Transmission & Distribution mains 20,060,075 20,060,075 

Meters & meter installation 483,949 483,949 
Hydrants 2,969 2,969 

Other plant & mise equip 861,964 861,964 

Office Furniture & equipment 175,251 175,251 

Transportation equipment 324,570 324,570 

Tools 29,534 29,534 

Lab Equipment 14,403 14,403 

Power Operated equipment 43,193 43,193 

Communication equipment 16,897 16,897 

Total at historical cost $ 33,288,246 $ I, 132,931 $ 57.500 $ 34,363,677 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Structures $ 97,892 $. 10,183 $ $ 108,075 

Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 63,959 1,555 65,514 

Lakes, rivers and intakes 524,668 29,865 554,533 

Pumping Equip 268,642 21,725 290,367 

Water Treatment Equipment 1,291,307 92,253 1,383,560 

Distribution reservoir & standpipes 854,392 81,505 935,897 

Transmission & Distribution mains 7,303,779 494,624 7,798,403 

Meters & meter installation 185,083 14,118 199,201 

Hydrants 1,843 89 1,932 

Other plant & mise equip 753,894 16,256 770,150 

Office Furniture & equipment 171,917 1,402 173,319 

Transportation equipment 311,355 7,314 318,669 

Tools 29,167 80 29,247 

Lab Equipment 14,401 14,401 

Power Operated equipment 43,192 43,192 

Communication equipment 15,647 899 16,546 

Total accumulated depreciation $ I 1,931,138 $ 771,868 $ $ 12,703 ,006 

Capital Assets-net $ 21,357,108 $ 36!,063 $ 57,500 $ 2 1,660,671 

Depreciation expense was $771,868 for the year. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

NOTE 5- Long-term debt 

Note Issue 

KIA 

Long-tenn debt activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2014, was as 
follows: 

Note payable 

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as a note payable 
represents the District's future obligations to make payments related to a loan 
obtained from the Kentucky Infrastructure Autho1ity (KIA) to provide water to 
customers in the Ma1iin County area. 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy debt 
service. The original amount of the outstanding note, maturity date, interest rate, and 
outstanding balance at December 31, 2014 is summarized below: 

Original 

Amount 

Maturity Interest 

Date Rates 

2013 

Debt 

Outstanding Additions Retirements 

2014 

Debt 

Outstanding 

$ 1,329,826 2027 3% $ 747,955 $ 45,632 $ 

The current amount due for the note payable as of December 31, 2014, is $47,020. 
The collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future 
note payable obligation is as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 47,020 $ 20,427 $ 67,447 
2016 48,450 18,997 67,447 
2017 49,924 17,523 67,447 
2018 51,443 16,004 67,447 
2019 53,007 14,440 67,447 

2020-2024 ?!=!0,?/4 -17,010 337,235 
2025-2027 162,253 6,364 168,617 

$ 702,322 $ 140,764 $ 843,087 

Capital lease 

The amount shown in the accompanying financial statements as capital lease 
represents the District's purchase of vehicles and equipment by obtaining funding 
from the Kentucky Association of Counties (KACO). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts suffi cient to satisfy the debt 
service. The original amount of outstanding capital lease, maturity date, interest rate, 
and outstanding balance, at December 31, 2014 is summarized below: 

Maturity Interest 2014 Lease 
Captal Lease Issue 

Original 
Amount Date Rates 

2013 Lease 
Outstanding Additions Retirements Outstanding 

KACO 

Bond Issues 

GMAC 
RD 1 
RD 5 
RD8 
RD 10 

$200,000 2025 1.85% $ 146,222 $ 10,000 $ 136,222 

The cunent amount due for the capital lease as of December 31, 2014, is $10,000. The 
collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future capital 
lease obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 10,000 $ 5,669 $ 15,669 
2016 10,000 5,264 15,264 
2017 10,000 4,834 14,834 
2018 10,000 4,431 14,431 
2019 10,000 4,013 14,013 

2020-2024 75,000 11,725 86,725 
2025 11 ,222 468 11,690 

$ 136,222 $ 36,404 $ 172,626 

Bonds payable 

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as bonds payable 
represents the District's initiation and improvements of its water system by obtaining 
funding from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Division of Rural 
Development (RD), and additionally, the loan obtained financing from GMAC. 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt 
service. The original amount of outstanding bonds, maturity date, interest rate, and 
outstanding balance, at December 31, 2014 is summarized below: 

2013 
Original Maturity Interest Debt 

2014 
Debt 

Amount Date Rates Outstanding Additions Retirements Outstanding 

$ 560,000 2015 5% $ 81,098 $ 81,098 $ 
554,000 2036 4.5% 434,000 23,000 411,000 
600,000 2040 4.5% 513,700 20,700 493,000 
910,000 2047 4.375% 868,000 24,000 844,000 

$ 241,000 2047 4.375% 229,000 6,000 223,000 

$ 2,125,798 $ $ 154,798 $ 1,971 ,000 
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f'!OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

There is no cunent amount due for the bonds as of December 31, 2014. The 
collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future bond 
obligations are as fo1lows: 

Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ $ $ 
2016 39,500 95,134 134,634 
2017 41 '100 93,358 134,458 
2018 43,500 91,505 135,005 
2019 44,600 89 ,545 134,145 

2020-2024 255,600 415,729 671,329 
2025-2029 316,900 352,832 669,732 
2030-2034 393,500 274,890 668,390 
2035-2039 ' 391 ,000 182,557 573,557 
2040-2044 273,300 105,674 378,974 
2045-2047 172,000 34,843 206,843 

$ 1,971,000 $ 1,736,065 $ 3,707,065 

NOTE 6- Pension plan 

County Employees Retirement System 

Employees who work an average of 1 00 hours per month participate in the County 
Employees Retirement System of Kentucky (CERS), a cost sharing, multiple­
employer public employees' retirement system created by and operating under 
Kentucky Law. 

The County Employees Retirement System covers substantially all regular fu11-time 
employees of the District. The plan provides for retirement, disability and death 
benefits. CERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained in 
writing from the County Employee Retirement System, 1260 Louisville Road, 
Perimeter Park West, and Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601. 

For participating employees who established an account prior to July 1, 2008, they 
contribute 5% of the creditable compensation. For employees hired after July 1, 
2008, they contribute 6% of the creditable compensation. Employer contribution 
rates are intended to fund the normal cost on a current basis plus one percent (1%) of 
unfunded past service costs per annum plus interest at the actuarial assumed rate. The 
Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems determines such contribution 
rates each biennium. The current District contribution rate for employees is 19.55%. 
The District contributed $97,386 of the employee's compensation during the calendar 
year ended December 31,2014. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

The District's required contributions (both withholding and match) for pension 
obligations to CERS for the fiscal years ended December 31,2014,2013, and 2012 
were $124,044, $122,085 and $104,718 respectively. 

NOTE 7- Recently issued accounting standards 

Govemment Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions, will require that unfunded portions of future benefit 
obligations shall be recorded as a liability of govemments. This pronouncement will 
be mandatory for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The District is on a 
calendar year but implementation shall take place in 2015 to more clearly align with 
the County Retirement System repoli ending June 30, 2014, the measurement date. 
The implementation will have a material effect on the financial statements. 

NOTE 8- Risk management 

The DistriCt is exposed to various risks of loss related to illegal acts, torts, 
theft/damage/ destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and 
natural disasters. To obtain insurance for workers' compensation, errors and 
omission, and general liability coverage, the District purchased commercial insurance 
coverage. 

NOTE 9- Subsequent events 

The District has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2016, the date of 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 

15 



White & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standard issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the enterprise fund of Martin County Water District (District), 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
District' s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity' s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination 
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Wbite & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30, 2016 
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MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

Year Ended December 31, 2014 

SECTION I- SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

What type of report was issued for the financial statements? 

Were there significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed? 
If so, was any significant deficiencies material (GAGAS)? 

Was any material noncompliance reported (GAGAS)? 

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

There were no findings. 
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Unmodified 

None reported 
N/A 

No 



MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Year Ended December 31, 2014 

There were no findings from the p1ior year. 
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September 30, 2016 

White & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

To the Board of Commissioners ofthe Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

We have audited the financial statements of the enterprise fund of the Martin County 
Water District for the year ended December 31, 2014. Professional standards require that 
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted 
auditing standards and, Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 
information in our letter to you dated May 19, 2016. Professional standards also require 
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

ignificant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects ofAccounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. 
The significant accounting policies used by Martin County Water District are described 
in Note 1 to the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the 
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 
the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and 
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are 
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because 
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the government wide financial statements 
was the useful lives and residual values of capital assets: 

Management's estimate of the useful lives and residual values of capital assets is 
based on historical trends. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the useful lives and residual values of capital assets in determining that it 
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements 
identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them 
to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such 
misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit 
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated September 30, 2016. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing 
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's 
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be 
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting 
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the 
governmental unit's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course 
of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Commisssioners and the 
Martin County Fiscal Court and management of the Martin County Water District and is 
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

CWkt> ((@ 9£ol!tf:dt't3, (f5}f;lJ?fJ 
White & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30,2016 
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V;1hite & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise fund of the 
Martin County Water District (District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the enterprise fund of the District, as of 
December 31, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and where 



applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 6 to the financial statements, in 2015, the District adopted new 
accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management' s discussion and analysis, schedule of the District's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability, and schedule of contributions information as listed in the table of 
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Management has 
omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the financial 
statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who consider it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or histoncal context. Our opinion on the basic 
financial statements is not affected by this missing information. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the remaining required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the inf01mation for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opiriion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 30, 2016, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

White & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30, 2016 
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ASSETS: 
Current assets: 

Martin County Water District 
STATEf1'iENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2015 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 

Customer, net 
Other, net 

Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accrued utility revenues 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assts, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities: 

Payroll taxes 
Other 
Interest 

Customer deposits 
Current portion of long-term debt: 

Bonds 
Note 
Capital lease 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability 
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt: 

Bonds 
Note 
Capital lease 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Inflow of resources related to current refunding premium 
lnfolow of resources related to pensions 

Total deferred outflows of resourcess 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Reserves 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 
Total liabilities and net position 

$ 

2015 

94,137 

235,876 
12,481 
24,067 
24,484 

258,199 
649,244 

288,317 
234,681 

20,790,640 
21,313,639 

52,952 

$ ===22=,0=1=5,=83=5= 

$ 609,534 

2,566 
60,923 
52,860 

139,998 

30,000 
48,450 
10,000 

954,331 

750,000 

1,980,000 
606,852 
116,222 

3,453,074 

21,893 
84,000 

105,893 

4,513,298 

18,233,797 

288,317 
(1 ,019,577) 
17,502,538 

$ ===2=2~,0==15=·=83=5= 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Martin County Water District 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES and CHANGES in NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Water sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Martin Fire Department 
Other 
Unmetered 

Other sales: 
Public authorities 
Penalties 
Other 
Vendors 

Miscellaneous 
Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Purchased water 
Chemicals 
Materials & supplies 
Contractual services 
Rental 
Transportation 
Insurance 
Bad debt 
Regulatory assess fees 
Depreciation 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATIONS INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Earnings on investments 
Amortization of deferrals 
Bond issuance costs 
Interest expens~ 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 

Tap fees 
Contributions 

Total capital contributions 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 
Prior period adjustment 

RESTATED NET POSITION, BEGINNING 

NET POSITION, ENDING 

$ 

2015 

1,624,198 
361,679 

9,836 
2,270 

724 
304 

4,540 
74,965 
3,073 

286 
15,621 

2,097,496 

550,131 
249,646 
426,314 
114,987 
223,500 
182,458 
126,831 
66,616 
55,847 
53,516 
4,298 

773,303 
38,324 

2,865,772 

(768,276) 

284 
470 

(67,250) 
(102,016) 
(168,512) 

(936,788) 

14,352 
52,615 
66,967 

(869,821) 

19,121,149 
(748,791) 

18,372,358 

$ ===1=7 ·=50~2=, 5=3=8= 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Martin County Water District 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Cash fl ows from operating activities : 
Cash received from customers and other sources 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments for employees and benefits 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Purchases and construction of capital assets 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Bond issuance costs 
Amortization of deferral of resources 
Interest paid on long-term debt 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest on note 
Other cash flows 
Investment income received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided 

(used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation/Amortization 
Accounts receivable 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accrued revenues 
Deferrals 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Customer deposits 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Noncash items: 
Capital contributions were $66,967. 

Interest expense: 
Interest expense was $102,016. 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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2015 

2,097,496 
(882,331) 
(852,729) 
362,436 

(70,987) 
(18,020) 
(67,250) 

4-70 
{102,016) 
(257,802) 

0 
1,209 

284 
1,493 

106,126 

276,328 

$ ====3=82=,4=5=4= 

$ (768,276) 

773,303 
5,926 
2,205 

(5,495) 
(14,546) 
52,941 

261,812 
47,917 

6,649 

$====36=2=,4=3=6= 



Martin County Water Di strict 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

NOTE 1 -Reporting entity and significant accounting policies 

(a) Description of the reporting entity 

The Martin County Water District (District) was authorized by action of the Martin 
County Fiscal Court. The Martin County Water District Side A was formed 
December 1, 1962. On August 31, 1996 the Fiscal Court, with approval of the 
Kentucky Public Service Commission, merged Section A and B. The District is a 
Special Purpose Government Entity (SPGE) recognized by the Kentucky Depa1iment 
of Local Government. The District is governed by the Mruiin County Utility Board, 
which is comprised of Commissioners appointed by the Martin County Fiscal Court. 

The District, for financial purposes, includes the transactions relevant to the operation 
of the Martin County Water District. The financial statements presented herein do 
not include other agencies which have been forn1ed under applicable state laws or 
separate and distinct units of government apart fi-om the Martin County Water 
District. 

(b) Basis of accounting 

The District operates and reports as an enterprise utilizing the accrual method of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized 
when incurred. Operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from 
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange 
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal 
values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, and investment earnings 
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they 
are needed. 

(c) Applicable accounting standards 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards for financial statements of state and local governments. 
The District has elected to follow all pronouncements of the GASB. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District's enterprise 
funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital 
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Mmiin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31 , 2015 

assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non­
operating revenues and expenses. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are reported in the accompanying statement of net position at fair value, 
except for certificates of deposit and investment contracts that are reported at cost 
because they are not transferable and they have terms that are not affected by changes 
in market interest rates. 

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment 
income reported for that year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes 
in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of 
investments. 

In accordance with the District's investment policy, the District may invest in the 
following: 

Certificates ofDeposit 
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
Money Market Mutual Funds 

Currently, the District has no investments. 

(e) Statement of cash flows 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined 
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash and cash equivalents, and highly 
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase. 
For financial statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are shown as 
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents. 

(f) Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent amounts held in trust at the bank and 
are set aside for bond sinking, operation and depreciation funds as required by the 
bond ordinance. Currently, the District has no restricted investments. 

(g) Capital assets 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for 
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their 
fair market values as of the date received. 
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Martin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contiuucd) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

All reported capital assets are depreciated with the exception of land and construction 
in progress. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the 
related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives: 

Dcsc1i ption 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Technology equipment 
Equipment 

(h) Employee leave benefits 

Estimated Lives 
10-50 years 
10-25 years 
5-20 years 
5-50 years 

The District's policy on vacation shall accrue at the rate of eighty (80) hours per year 
for one (1) to five (5) years of full time employment, henceforth employees' may earn 
an additional eight (8) hours per year up to a maximum of one hundred and twenty 
(120) hours. Maximum accrual of each employee is one hundred and sixty (160) 
hours. No monetary value is given to the accrual of vacation. 

The District's employees' shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per 
month to a maximum of four hundred and eighty ( 480) hours. No monetary value is 
given to the accrual of sick leave. 

(i) Use of estimates 

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the District's 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

(j) Inventory 

The District maintains a detailed inventory of supplies needed to maintain the water 
infrastructure. Inventory is recorded_ at historical cost and expensed when used. 

(k) Prepaid expenses 

Payments made by the District that benefit periods beyond December 31st are 
classified as prepaid expenses. A current asset is recorded at the time of purchase and 
an expense is made per the consumption method. The prepayment of expenses is for 
the numerous insurances required on behalf of the District's employees' and its 
infrastructure. 
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Mmiin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

(I) Accrued utility revenues 

Accrued utility revenues are the accrual of water sales at December 31st that has not 
been billed to customers. 

(m)Accounts receivable, net 

The District accounts for the billings to customers as Customer accounts receivable 
less the amounts determined not to be collectable. 

(n) Capital contributions 

Capital contributions include the amounts paid by state and local governments that 
arise from contributions of capital assets, or from grants or outside contributions of 
resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction. 

( o) Reserves for net position 

The amount restricted in net position is the amount that has been set aside for 
payments of long-term debt. The restricted amount equals the restricted cash and 
cash equivalents as reported in the statement of net position. 

(p) Net investment in capital assets 

Net investment in capital assets is the net amount of the capital assets less the 
amounts payable for long-term debt financing those capital assets. 

( q) Customer deposits 

Deposits required by the District for each customer to receive services. The deposits 
are maintained by the District and returned when services are no longer used or other 
qualifying event by the District's policy. 

(r) Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the County Employees' Retirement 
System (CERS) and additions to/deductions from fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the pensions. For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments, if any, are 
reported at fair value. 
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Martin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31,2015 

(s) New accounting pronouncements 
The Distlict implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting of Pensions" (GASB 68). 
GASB 68 replaced the requirements of GASB 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State 
and Local Governmental Employers" and GASB 50, "Pension Disclosures", as they 
relate to governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as 
trusts or similar anangements that meet certain criteria. GASB 68 requires 
governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term 
obligation for pension benefits as a liability to comprehensively and comparably 
measure the annual costs of pension benefits. Cost-sharing governmental employers, 
such as the District, are required to report a net pension liability, pension expense and 
pension-related assets and liabilities based on their proportionate share of the 
collective amounts for all govemments in the plan. 

NOTE 2- Budgetary data 

The District's Board of Commissioners receives and approves an annual budget from 
management each calendar year fulfilling the requirement to prepare an annual 
budget as required by all SPGE's for the Kentucky Department of Local Government. 

NOTE 3 - Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2015 are classified m the 
accompanying financial statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

$ 94,137 
288,317 

$ 382,454 

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2015 consist of the following: 

Cash on hand $ 900 
Deposits with financial institutions 381,554 

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 382,454 

Custodial risk 

Custodial risk for deposits is the Iisk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not 
be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
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Ma1iin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31,2015 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterpmiy (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able 
to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession 
of a another party. As of June 30th, the District's deposits with financial institutions 
are non-interest bearing, and have a limited insurance coverage with the federal 
deposit insurance corporation up to $250,000. As of December 31, 2015, the District 
deposits with financial institutions exceeded the federal depository_ insurance limits 
by $158,045. The difference has been covered by securities.IJledged by the financial 
institution holding the deposits. 
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Martin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

NOTE 4- Capital assets 

Capital asset activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2015, was as follows: 

12/31/2013 Addition Deduclion l213J/2014 

Land $ 214,714 $ $ - $ 214,714 
Construction in progress 57,500 57,500 
Structures 500,264 500,264 
Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 288,203 288,203 
Lakes, rivers and intakes 1,021,403 1,132,350 2,153,753 
Pumping Equip 308,887 58\ 309,468 
Water Treatment Equipment 4,812,970 4,812,970 
Distribution reservor & standpipes 4,071,502 4,071,502 
Transmission & Distribution mains 20,060,075 20,060,075 
Meters & meter installation 483,949 483,949 
Hydrants 2,969 2,969 
Other plant & mise equip 86\,964 861,964 
Office Furniture & equipment 175,251 175,251 
Transportation equipment 324,570 324,570 
Tools 29,534 29,534 
Lab Equipment 14,403 14,403 
Power Operated equipment 43,193 43,193 
Communication equipment 16,897 16,897 

Total at historical cost $ 33,288,246 $ 1,132,931 $ 57,500 $ 34,363,677 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Structures $ 97,892 $ 10,183 $ $ 108,075 
Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 63,959 1,555 65,514 
Lakes, rivers and intakes 524,668 29,865 554,533 
Pumping Equip 268,642 21,725 290,367 
Water Treatment Equipment 1,291,307 92,253 1,383,560 
Distribution reservoir & standpipes 854,392 81,505 935,897 
Transmission & Distribution mains 7,303,779 494,624 7,798,403 
Meters & meter installation 185,083 14,118 199,201 
Hydrants 1,843 89 1,932 
Other plant & mise equip 753,894 16,256 770,150 
Office Furniture & equipment 171,917 1,402 173,319 
Transportation equipment 311,355 7,314 318,669 

Tools 29,167 80 29,247 

Lab Equipment 14,401 14,401 

Power Operated equipment 43,192 43,192 

Communication equipment 15,647 899 16,546 

Total accumulated depreciation $ 11 ,93 1,138 $ 771 ,868 $ - $ 12,703,006 

Capital Assets-net $ 21,357,108 $ 361,063 $ 57,500 $ 21,660,671 

Depreciation expense was $773,303 for the year. 
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Martin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31,2015 

NOTE 5 -Long-term debt 

Note Issue 

KIA 

Long-term debt activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2015, was as 
follows: 

Note payable 

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as a note payable 
represents the District's future obligations to make payments related to a loan 
obtained :from the Kentucky In:frash"ucture Authority (KIA) to provide water to 
customers in the Martin County area. 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy debt 
service. The original amount of the outstanding note, maturity date, interest rate, and 
outstanding balance at December 31, 2015 is summarized below: 

Original 

Amount 

Maturity Interest 

2014 
Debt 

Outstanding Additions Retirements 

2015 
Debt 

Outstanding 

$ 1,329,826 2027 3% $ 702,323 $ 47,020 $ 

The current amount due for the note payable as of December 31, 2015, is $48,450. 
The collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future 
note payable obligation is as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

2016 $ 48,450 $ 18,997 $ 67,447 
2017 49,924 17,523 67,447 
2018 51,443 16,004 67,447 
2019 53,007 14,440 67,447 
2020 54,620 12,827 67,447 

2021-2025 299,052 38,183 337,235 
2026-2027 98,806 2,364 101 '170 

$ 655,302 $ 120,338 $ 775,640 

Capital lease 

The amount shown in the accompanying financial statements as capital lease 
represents the District's purchase of vehicles and equipment by obtaining funding 
:from the Kentucky Association of Counties (KACO). 
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Marlin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31,2015 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt 
service. The 01iginal amount of outstanding capital lease, maturity date, interest rate, 
and outstanding balance, at December 31, 2015 is summarized below: 

Capta l Lease Issue 

KACO 

Original Maturity 
Amount Date 

$ 200,000 2025 

Interest 
Rates 

1.85% 

2014 Lease 
Outstanding 

$ 136,222 

Add itions Retirements 

$ 10,000 

2015 Lease 
Outstanding 

$ 126,222 

The cuiTent amount due for the capital lease as ofDecember 31,2015, is $10,000. The 
collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future capital 
lease obligations are as follows: 

Principa l Interest Total 

2016 $ 10,000 $ 5,264 $ 15,264 
2017 10,000 4,834 14,834 
2018 10,000 4,431 14,431 
2019 10,000 4,013 14,013 
2020 15,000 3,596 18,596 

2021-2025 71 ,222 8,597 79,819 

$ 126,222 $ 30,735 $ 156,957 

Bonds payable 

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as bonds payable 
represents the District's initiation and improvements of its water system by obtaining 
funding from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Division of Rural 
Development (RD). The RD loans were refunded on May 12, 2015 from the 
Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation Public Projects. 

Series 201 5E Current Refunding 

RD loans of$2,008,100 were refunded on May 12,2015 by $2,010,000 par amount 
public project fund bond from the Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation. The 
new debt bears interest from 2.1 - 4.1% maturing on February 1, 2044. The net fair 
value cash flow savings is $223,252, and the net present value savings of$112,269, a 
savings of 4.06%. The District will receive a net future value benefit of $185,746 of 
refunding with the new debt a 3.72% savings. 

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the new 
debt service. The original amount of outstanding bonds, maturity date, interest rate, 
and outstanding balance, at December 31, 2015 is summarized below: 
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Bond Issues 

RD 1 
RD 5 

RD 8 

RD10 

Marlin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FJNANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

2014 
Original Maturity Interest Debt 

Amount Date Rates Outstanding Additions Rell rements 

$ 554,000 2036 4.5% $ 422,500 $ 422,500 
600,000 2040 4.5% 503,600 503,600 
910,000 2047 4.375% 856,000 856,000 
241,000 2047 4.375% 226,000 226,000 

2015 
Debt 

Outstanding 

$ 

Refunding KRW $ 2,010,000 2045 2.1-4.1% 2.010,000 2,010,000 

$ 2.008,100 $ 2,010,000 $ 2,008,100 $ 

The current amount due for the bonds as of December 31, 2015, is $30,000. The 
collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future bond 
obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

2016 $ 30,000 $ 91,300 $ 121,300 
2017 50,000 73,974 123,974 
2018 55,000 72,321 127,321 
2019 55,000 70,066 125,066 
2020 55,000 68,361 123,361 

2021-2025 310,000 308,084 618,084 
2026-2030 370,000 249,181 619,181 
2031-2035 430,000 176,416 606,416 
2036-2040 390,000 93,275 483,275 
2041-2045 265,000 27,778 292,778 

$ 2,010,000 $ 1,230,756 $ 3,240,756 

NOTE 6- Pension Plan 

2,010.000 

General information about the County Employees Retirement System Non-
Hazardous ("CERS") 

Plan description~Employees whose positions do not require a degree beyond a high 
school diploma are covered by the CERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Kentucky Retirement System, an agency of 
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Under the provisions of the Kentucky Revised 
Statute ("KRS") Section 61.645, the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement 
System administers CERS and has the authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions. The Kentucky Retirement System issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for 
CERS. That report may be obtained from http://kyret.ky.gov/. 
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Mmiin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Benefits provided-CERS provides retirement, health insurance, death and disability 
benefits to Plan employees and beneficiaries. Employees are vested in the plan after 
five years' service. For retirement purposes, employees are grouped into tlu·ee tiers, 
based on hire date: 

Tier 1 
Unreduced retirement 
Reduced retirement 

Tier 2 
Unreduced retirement 

Reduced retirement 

Tier 3 
Unreduced retirement 

Reduced retirement 

Participation date Before September 1, 2008 
27 years service or 65 years old 
At least 5 years service and 55 years old 
At least 25 years service and any age 

Participation date, September 1, 2008 -December 31,2015 
At least 5 years service and 65 years old 
Or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87 
At least 10 years service and 60 years old 

Participation date After December 31, 2015 
At least 5 years service and 65 years old 
Or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87 
Not available 

Cost of living adjustments are provided at the discretion of the General Assembly. 
Retirement is based on a factor of the number of years' service and hire date multiplied 
by the average of the highest five years' earnings. Reduced benefits are based on 
factors of both of these components. Participating employees become eligible to receive 
the health insurance benefit after at least 180 months of service. Death benefits are 
provided for both death after retirement and death prior to retirement. Death benefits 
after retirement are $5,000 in lump sum. Five years' service is required for death 
benefits prior to retirement and the employee must have suffered a duty-related death. 
The decedent's beneficiary will receive the higher of the normal death benefit and 
$10,000 plus 25% ofthe decedent's monthly final rate ofpay and any dependent child 
will receive 10% of the decedent's monthly fmal rate of pay up to 40% for all 
dependent children. Five years' service is required for non-service-related disability 
benefits. 

Contributions-Required contributions by the employee are based on the tier: 

Tier 
Tier 
Tier 

1 
2 
3 

Requil·ed co11tribution 
5% 

5% + 1% for insurance 
5% + 1% for insurance 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
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Martin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

At December 31, 2015, the Dist1ict reported a liability for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability for CERS. The amount recognized by the District as its 
proportionate share of the net pension liabilityis as follows: 

District's proportionate share of CERS' s net pension liability $ 750,000 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. 

The District's proportion of the net pension liability for CERS was based on the 
actual liability of the employees and fanner employees relative to the total liability of 
the System as determined by the actuary. At June 30, 2014, the District's proportion 
was . 023123% (percent). 

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of 
$85,209 related to CERS. At December 31, 2015, the District reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual $ $ 

experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 84,000 

Changes in proportion and differences 

between District contributions and proportionate 

share of contributions 

District contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 52,952 

$ 52,952 $ 84,000 
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Martin Cmmty Water Di strict 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 20 15 

$52,952 reported as defen·ed outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2016. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended 12/31 

2016 $ 10,590 

2017 10,590 

2018 10,590 

2019 10,590 

2020 10,590 

$ 52,952 

Actuarial assumptions-the total pension liability in the June 30, 2014 actuarial 
valuation was dete1mined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Projected salary increases 
Investment rate of return , net of 

investment expense & inflation 

CERS KTRS 
3.50% 
4.50% 

7.75% 

3.50% 
4.0-8.2% 

7.50% 

For CERS, mortality rates for the period after service retirement are according to the 
1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table for all retired employees and beneficiaries as of 
June 30, 2006 and the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for all other employees. 
The Group Annuity Mortality Table set forward five years is used for the period after 
disability retirement. 

For CERS, the long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the 
regular experience studies prepared every five years. The most recent analysis, 
performed for the penod covering calendar years 2005 through 2008, is outlined in a 
report dated August 25, 2009. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long­
term rate of return assumption including long-term historical data, estimates inherent 
in current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of investment 
expense and inflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each major 
asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The capital market 
assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use over a 1 0-
year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding 
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Mmiin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Y ear Ended December 31, 2015 

pension plans which covers a longer timcfi:ame. The assumption is intended to be a 
Jong-te1m assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the 
asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the 
market that alters expected returns in future years. 

Discount rate-For CERS, the discount rate used to measure the total pension 
liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows used to dete1mine the discount rate 
~sumed that contributions from plan employees and employers will be made at 
statutory contribution rates. Projected inflows from investment earnings were 
calculated using the long-tenn assumed investment return of 7. 75%. The long-term 
investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of CERS proportionate share of net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate-The following table presents the net pension liability of the District, 
calculated using the discount rates selected by the pension system, as well as what the 
District's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that 
is !-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

Current 
1% Discount 

Decrease Rate 1% Increase 

CERS 6.75% 7.75% 8.75% 

District's proportionate share 
of net pension liability 846,996 750,000 653,397 

Pension plan fiduciary net position-detailed information about the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial reports of CERS. 

NOTE 7 - Change in accounting principle and related changes to certain beginning 
balances. 

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 68, "Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions" required retrospective application. Since the 
District only presents one year of financial information, the beginning net position 
was adjusted to reflect the retrospective application. The adjushnent resulted in a 
$748,791 reduction in beginning net position on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position and an increase of $84,000 of deferred inflows of 
resources - and $52,952 in deferred outflows of resources - District contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date 
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Mmiin County Water District 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31,2015 

NOTE 8- Risk management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to illegal acts, torts, 
theft/damage/ destruction of assets, en·ors and omissions, injuries to employees, and 
natural disasters. To obtain insurance for workers' compensation, errors and 
omission, and general liability coverage, the District purchased commercial insurance 
coverage. 

NOTE 9 - Subsequent events 

The District has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2016, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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Martin County Water District 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OFTHE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

COUNTY EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM: 

Districts' proportion of the net pension liability 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

State's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability associated with the District 

Total 

District's covered-employee payroll 

District's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability as a percentage of its 
covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

Reporting Fiscal Year 
(Measurement Date) 

2015 
(2014) 

0.02% 

$ 750,000 

$ 750,000 

$ 693,688 

108.12% 

66.80% 

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 1 0 fiscal years. Additional years will be 
displayed as they become available. 

See the accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 
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Martin County Water District 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
Year Ended December 31, 2015 

2015 
COUNTY EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM: 

Contractually required contribution $ 104,892 

Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution 104,892 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

District's covered-employee payroll $ 693,688 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of it's covered-employee payroll 15.12% 

2014 

$ 97,385 

$ 97,385 

$ 593,711 

16.40% 

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years .. Additional years will be displayed 
as they become available. 

See the accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 
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Ma1iin County Water District 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the Year Ended December 31,2015 

Changes in terms -None 

Changes in assumptions -None 
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"'hite & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPO;RTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standard issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the enterprise fund of Martin County Water District (District), 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated September 30,2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's fmancial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct . and material effect on the determination 
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

White & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30, 2016 
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MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 

SECTION I- SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

What type of report was issued for the financial statements? 

Were there significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed? 
If so, was any significant deficiencies material (GAGAS)? 

Was any material noncompliance reported (GAGAS)? 

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

There were no findings. 
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Unmodified 

None reported 
N/A 

No 



MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTR1CT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Year Ended December 31,2015 

There were no findings fi:om the prior year. 
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September 30, 2016 

':Vhite & Associates, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1407 Lexington Road 
Richmond, Kentucky 40475 

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District 
Inez, Kentucky 

We have audited the financial statements of the enterprise fund of the Martin County 
Water District for the year ended December 31, 2015. Professional standards require that 
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under' generally accepted 
auditing standards and, Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain infonnation 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 
information in our letter to you dated May 19, 2016. Professional standards also require 
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Andit Fi11dings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. 
The significant accounting policies used by Martin County Water District are described 
in Note 1 to the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the 
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 
the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and _are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and 
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are 
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because 
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the government wide financial statements 
was the useful lives and residual values of capital assets: 

Management's estimate of the useful lives and residual values of capital assets is 
based on historical trends. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the useful lives and residual values of capital assets in determining that it 
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements 
identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them 
to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such 
misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit 
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to each opinion unit' s financial statements taken as a whole. · 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether 9r not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated September 30, 2016. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing 
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's 
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be 
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting 
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the 
governmental unit's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course 
of our professional relationship and our responses were riot a condition to our retention. 

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Commisssioners and the 
Martin County Fiscal Court and management of the Martin County Water District and is 
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

(#{ite ((@ !Y.Mo~ial.etl, ~ 
White & Associates, PSC 
Richmond, Kentucky 
September 30, 2016 
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